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1                   CITY OF CORAL GABLES
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1          (The following proceedings were held.)
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  All right.  Ladies and 
3      Gentlemen, we're going to get the meeting 
4      started.  
5          Good evening.  I'll read some introductory 
6      statements.  The Board is comprised of seven 
7      Members.  Four Members of the Board shall 
8      constitute a quorum and the affirmative vote of 
9      four Members of the Board present shall be 
10      necessary for the adoption of any motion.  A 
11      tie vote shall result in a request moving 
12      forward for Commission's consideration without 
13      a recommendation, if the Applicant does not 
14      request a continuance.  
15          The lobbyist registration and disclosure, 
16      any person who acts as a lobbyist pursuant to 
17      the City of Coral Gables Ordinance Number 
18      2006-11 must register with the City Clerk prior 
19      to engaging in lobbying activities or 
20      presentations before City Staff, Boards, 
21      Committees and/or the City Commission.  A copy 
22      of the Ordinance in available in the Office of 
23      the City Clerk.  Failure to register and 
24      provide proof of registration shall prohibit 
25      your ability to present to the Board.  
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1          I now officially call the City of Coral 
2      Gables Planning and Zoning Board of May -- what 
3      is today -- May 17th to order.  The time is 
4      6:07 p.m.  
5          Jill, if you could call the roll, please.
6          THE SECRETARY:  Robert Behar?  
7          Marshall Bellin?
8          MR. BELLIN:  Here.
9          THE SECRETARY:  Julio Gabriel?  
10          Maria Menendez?
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  Here.
12          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?
13          MR. PEREZ:  Here.
14          THE SECRETARY:  Frank Rodriguez?  
15          Jeff Flanagan?  
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Here.  We have four 
17      Members present.  
18          For the notice regarding ex parte 
19      communications, please be advised that this 
20      Board is a quasi-judicial Board and the items 
21      on the agenda are quasi-judicial in nature, 
22      which requires Board Members to disclose all ex 
23      parte communications and site visits.  
24          An ex parte communication is defined as any 
25      contact, communication, conversation, 
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1      correspondence, memorandum or other written or 
2      verbal communication that take places outside 
3      of the public hearing between a member of the 
4      public and a member of a quasi-judicial Board 
5      regarding matters to be heard by the Board.  
6          If anyone made any contact with a Board 
7      Member regarding an issue before the Board, the 
8      Board Member must state on the record the 
9      existence of the ex parte communication and the 
10      party who originated the communication.  Also, 
11      if a Board Member conducted a site visit 
12      specifically related to the case before the 
13      Board, the Board Member must also disclose such 
14      visit.  In either case, the Board Member must 
15      state on the record whether the ex parte 
16      communication and/or site visit will affect the 
17      Board Member's ability to impartially consider 
18      the evidence to be presented regarding the 
19      matter.  The Board Member should also state 
20      that his or her decision will be based on 
21      substantial competent evidence and testimony 
22      presented on the record today.  
23          Does any Member of the Board have any such 
24      communication or site visit to disclose at this 
25      time?  
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1          There are none.  
2          For the swearing in, everybody who is going 
3      to speak today must be sworn in, so you must 
4      also, please, complete the roster on the podium 
5      with the Board Secretary.  We ask that you 
6      print clearly, so the official records of your 
7      name and address will be correct.  
8          Now, with the exception of the attorneys 
9      representing the Applicant, all persons who 
10      will speak on agenda items before us this 
11      evening please rise to be sworn in.  
12          (Thereupon, the participants were sworn.)
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  And in deference to 
14      those present, we ask that all cell phones, 
15      pagers and other electrical devices be turned 
16      off or silenced at this time.  
17          And we will now proceed with the agenda.  
18          I know we have one item on the agenda 
19      tonight, although I don't have a copy of the 
20      agenda before me.  
21          Thanks.  
22          All right.  We've got five items on the 
23      agenda tonight.  As we usually do, and, Craig, 
24      can you confirm, we'll read them all into the 
25      record, we'll hear everything, since they are 
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1      all related, and then vote on each one 
2      individually? 
3          MR. COLLER:  Yes, I would handle it that 
4      way.  
5          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  So I'll read 
6      them in.  
7          Item Number 5 on the agenda is an Ordinance 
8      of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida 
9      requesting an amendment to the Future Land Use 
10      Map of the City of Coral Gables Comprehensive 
11      Plan pursuant to Zoning Code Article 3, 
12      "Development Review," Division 15, 
13      "Comprehensive Plan Text and Map Amendments," 
14      and Small Scale amendment procedures (Statute 
15      163.3187, Florida Statutes), from "Industrial" 
16      Land Use to "Mixed Use" Land Use and removing 
17      the "Mixed Use Overlay District" Land Use for 
18      the property legally described as Tracts A and 
19      B, Block 5 and Tract 1, MacFarlane Homestead 
20      and St. Albans Park, located at 215 and 251 
21      South Dixie Highway, Coral Gables, Florida; 
22      providing for a repealer provision, providing 
23      for a severability clause, and providing for an 
24      effective date.  The legal description is on 
25      file at the City and that's Local Planning 
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1      Agency Review.  
2          Item 6 is an Ordinance of the City 
3      Commission of Coral Gables, Florida requesting 
4      an amendment to the Zoning Map of the City of 
5      Coral Gables pursuant to Zoning Code Article 4, 
6      "Development Review", Division 14, "Zoning Code 
7      Text and Map Amendments", from "Industrial" 
8      District to "Commercial" District and removing 
9      the "South Industrial Mixed-Use District" for 
10      the property legally described as Tracts A and 
11      B, Block 5 and Tract 1, MacFarlane Homestead 
12      and St. Albans Park, located at 215 and 251 
13      South Dixie Highway, Coral Gables, Florida; 
14      providing for a repealer provision, providing 
15      for a severability clause, providing for an 
16      effective date.  The legal description is on 
17      file at the City.  
18          Item Number 7 is an Ordinance of the City 
19      Commission of Coral Gables, Florida providing 
20      for text amendments to the City of Coral Gables 
21      Official Zoning Code, by amending Appendix A, 
22      "Site Specific Zoning Regulations," Section 
23      A-66, "MacFarlane Homestead," by modifying 
24      provisions for height and setbacks, and adding 
25      new provisions, for the property legal 
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1      described as Tracts A and B, Block 5 and Tract 
2      1, MacFarlane Homestead and St. Albans Park, 
3      located at 215 and 251 South Dixie Highway, 
4      Coral Gables, Florida; providing for a repealer 
5      provision, providing for a severability clause, 
6      codification, and providing for an effective 
7      date.  The legal description is on file with 
8      the City.
9          Item 8, an Ordinance of the City Commission 
10      of Coral Gables, Florida requesting review of a 
11      Planned Area Development pursuant to Zoning 
12      Code Article 3, "Development Review", Division 
13      5, "Planned Area Development (PAD)", for the 
14      proposed project referred to as "Gables 
15      Station" on the property legally described as 
16      Tracts A and B, Block 5, and Tract 1, 
17      MacFarlane Homestead and St. Albans Park, at 
18      215 and 251 South Dixie Highway, Coral Gables, 
19      Florida; including required conditions; 
20      providing for a repealer provision, providing 
21      for a severability clause and providing for an 
22      effective date.  The legal description is on 
23      file with the City.
24          If we could please silence cell phones and 
25      other devices.  That would be appreciated.  
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1          Item Number 9 on the agenda is a Resolution 
2      of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida 
3      requesting Mixed-Use Site Plan Review pursuant 
4      to Zoning Code Article 4, "Zoning Districts," 
5      Division 2, "Overly and Special Purpose 
6      Districts," Section 4-201, "Mixed-Use District 
7      or MXD," for the proposed project referred to 
8      as "Gables Station" on the property legally 
9      described as Tracts A and B, Block 5, and Tract 
10      1, MacFarlane Homestead and St. Albans Park, 
11      215 and 251 South Dixie Highway, Coral Gables, 
12      Florida; including required conditions; 
13      providing for a repealer provision, providing 
14      for a severability clause, and providing for an 
15      effective date.  The legal description is on 
16      file with the City.
17          We'll hear from the Applicant first and 
18      then the City's presentation.  
19          MR. BASS:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the 
20      Board, Jeffrey Bass is my name, 46 Southwest 
21      First Street is my address.  I'm here 
22      representing the Applicant.  I'm joined by a 
23      calvary of co-counsel that I need not 
24      introduce, because you should recognize each 
25      and every one of them. 
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1          Before I start, I would like to thank you, 
2      Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Board, for 
3      having this Special Meeting and for 
4      accommodating us.  
5          There are three words that encapsulate the 
6      Gable Station project; Live Work and Play.  
7      These are the themes that have driven our 
8      design, and I would just like to briefly 
9      highlight those themes for you, within the 
10      context of this application, briefly, before I 
11      have Mr. Jorge Hernandez walk you through the 
12      actual drawings.  
13          So let me start, with the Live Work Play, 
14      with Live.  This is a mixed-use project, with a 
15      sizable residential component.  There are 
16      approximately 450 residential units proposed 
17      for the project, and I'd like to emphasize for 
18      you that previously there was a commercial 
19      project approved on this site, and by changing 
20      the complexion of the use from a completely 
21      commercial site to a mixed-use residential 
22      site, by making this a residential site, in 
23      essence, we have reduced the amount of traffic 
24      generated on this site by 50 percent of the 
25      project that was previously approved there.  
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1      That's a fact, and I believe that that's a 
2      vitally important fact.
3          Work, this is a project that is designed 
4      with Live Work in mind.  By creating a 
5      mixed-use residential project here along a 
6      transit corridor, Gables Station, as the name 
7      implies, is all about creating residential 
8      density within a transit corridor.  And by 
9      doing so, we fulfill what I call the mobility 
10      mandate of your Comprehensive Plan, to increase 
11      density in close proximity to transit.  
12          So this project, Gables Station, we submit, 
13      represents the quintessence of a 
14      transit-oriented project because of its 
15      location.  
16          On the Work part, of the Live Work Play, we 
17      have a hotel.  And a hotel is a new use for 
18      this site, never previously shown, and the 
19      hotel is a place where people who come to work 
20      in Coral Gables can stay when they shop in our 
21      shops and eat and drink in our restaurants.  
22          So on the Work part, we believe that this 
23      will be an engine for the economy of Coral 
24      Gables.  But, also, on the Work part, because 
25      we have a hotel, this project will create jobs.  
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1      It will create jobs in the hotel, on a wide -- 
2      of a wide variety.  
3          We also have approximately 60,000 square 
4      feet of commercial.  Of the 60,000 square feet 
5      of commercial, approximately 10,000 are 
6      dedicated for restaurant use.  Our commercial 
7      space, including our restaurant space, will 
8      also be a job creator in this area.  And by 
9      having the restaurant, and by having the 
10      commercial, we believe we make this a far more 
11      lovely place to Live and Work, by having 
12      amenities for the people who live with us and 
13      stay with us, to serve their needs right on the 
14      property, and, again, within close walk to 
15      transit.  
16          Play, of the Live Work Play, and I think 
17      that this is perhaps the most significant 
18      departure from anything that you've seen 
19      before, this project has an unprecedented move 
20      towards creating urban park space, and Jorge 
21      Hernandez will expressly explain to you the 
22      magnitude of the gesture towards creating 
23      public park space, but to just to steal his 
24      thunder a bit, what we propose to do here is to 
25      take existing surface parking spaces and fund 
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1      their transformation into what will be the 
2      largest urban park within the City of Coral 
3      Gables.  And we're very excited about that.  
4          Another equally important component of the 
5      Play, of Live Work Play, is that this 
6      Applicant/Developer Team has committed to fund 
7      one quarter mile of the Underline, right here, 
8      as it fronts this project.  So, together, these 
9      public realm components of this project are 
10      truly transformational of what has just been a 
11      sea of surface parking lots into just a 
12      transformative place to live, to work, to shop, 
13      to eat and to stay in a hotel.  
14          Now, there are several applications that 
15      are before you.  I'd like to really just 
16      crystalize them to their essence and explain 
17      why it is that we're asking for your approval 
18      here this evening.  
19          And before I do, I would just like to note 
20      that we have a favorable recommendation from 
21      your Staff, and I'm going to ask you twice, 
22      because it's that important, to make sure, 
23      before we leave this evening, that you make the 
24      findings and adopt as your own the findings 
25      that your Staff has included in its 
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1      recommendation.  
2          So what are the applications and what are 
3      we asking for?  The applications work as 
4      follows:  This is a tough site, as you can 
5      imagine, and it's a particularly tough site to 
6      do residential and a hotel.  And it's a tough 
7      site, because it's on US-1.  It's a long, 
8      narrow site.  It is adjacent to the Metrorail.  
9      And it spans two substantial intersections, 
10      that of US-1 and Ponce and US-1 and Le Jeune.  
11          This is a difficult site to develop, and 
12      the best evidence of that fact is, it has 
13      remained substantially undeveloped for as long 
14      as I have lived in South Florida.  It's been a 
15      parking lot.  
16          What we propose to do here and what we're 
17      asking your approval for, is to allow us to 
18      build additional height on our three 
19      buildings -- and this is designed into three 
20      buildings -- so that we can adjust and 
21      accomodate for the height of the existing 
22      Metrorail structure and the Metrorail cars that 
23      run on top of the structure.  
24          So it's no coincidence, we're asking for 
25      these approvals so that we can build an 
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1      additional approximate 35 feet in height, and 
2      that is the height of the Metrorail with a car 
3      on top of it, because we're trying to make it 
4      as lovely as it can possibly be for the 
5      residents who will live here and the guests who 
6      will stay here.  
7          The heights that we seek, we have a hotel 
8      on the southernmost piece.  We propose 160 feet 
9      there.  And on the two residential towers, we 
10      propose 147 feet.  And, again, Mr. Hernandez 
11      will talk to you about that.  
12          We have the support from the homeowners 
13      within the Lola B. Walker Homeowners 
14      Association.  Their letters are in the packet 
15      before you and are included in the record.  I 
16      would like to be sure that they're included in 
17      the record of these proceedings.  I believe 
18      some are here to speak in support.  
19          As I mentioned before, we have the support 
20      of your Staff and their recommendation, and we 
21      would ask for your support, as well.  
22          I'd like to take a few minutes for rebuttal 
23      at the end, in the close, after the public 
24      speak, but because this is a Comprehensive Plan 
25      Amendment of a Small Scale variety, and because 
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1      you are reviewing it for consistency with the 
2      Comprehensive Plan, and because your Staff has 
3      found consistency with a host of goals, 
4      policies and objectives of the Comprehensive 
5      Plan, I'd like to be sure, as part of this 
6      proceeding, that you make those findings 
7      yourselves.  
8          So thank you, again, for accommodating us 
9      on this special meeting.  I'd like to now have 
10      Jorge Hernandez present the project to you.  
11          Thank you.  
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you. 
13          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Good evening.  Jorge 
14      Hernandez, 337 Palermo Avenue.  
15          Can you all see the boards or should we 
16      move them a little further in this direction?  
17          You can see them?  
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Are you okay?  You're 
19      the furthest.   
20          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah, fine.  
21          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No, I think we're good.  
22      Thank you.  
23          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, good evening and 
24      thank you, again.  It's a pleasure to be here.  
25      And thank you for holding a special meeting for 
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1      this project.  
2          As Jeff said, this really is an unusual and 
3      extraordinary site -- yeah, thank you -- may be 
4      somewhat encumbered by its geometry, the length 
5      of it, but nevertheless critically positioned, 
6      and so we see the aerial that has been put up 
7      on the board previously.  Just to be clear, 
8      it's a site fronting US-1, between Ponce 
9      Boulevard and Grand Avenue and Le Jeune Road 
10      intersection of US-1.  That is the site.  It's 
11      175 feet deep, and it is almost 1,200 feet long 
12      on the frontage.  
13          You know, Jeff talked about this site, 
14      where the notion of Live and Work and Play 
15      become instrumental in making place and finding 
16      a kind of way of giving back to the City, then 
17      the vehicle, the planning and architectural 
18      vehicles with which that is done, is by the 
19      making of a park, a street, and a square.  And 
20      so I'd like to walk you through that, if I may, 
21      the making of a park, a street, and a square.  
22          So, on your left is a series of comparative 
23      scale drawings of our urban parks, and they are 
24      all at the same scale.  You can see that what 
25      we were calling for the moment Gables Station 
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1      Park, for lack of a better word -- is this on?  
2      Hello?  Hello?  Yes -- what we're calling 
3      Gables Station Park is the one at the top.  
4      Here is Hartnett Park.  Here is Ingram Park.  
5      Here is Jaycee Park.  And here is the 
6      MacFarlane Park.  And, by and large, this park 
7      is the largest one, at 2.895 acres, sometimes 
8      two-fold some of those other urban parks.  
9          Now, I must say that the initiative -- you 
10      can see on the right the parcel in question, 
11      and this parcel is the parcel that is owned by 
12      the developer, by NPI, but there is this swath 
13      of land, just west of it, which, as you know, 
14      is currently a series of more surface parking, 
15      and it is shared by multiple municipalities.  
16      Some of it is County, some of it is County 
17      which is leased to Coral Gables, and so on and 
18      so forth.  It's a quilt of ownership and leases 
19      and son on.  And then I don't know if you can 
20      see, under that red line is the actual space 
21      under the Metrorail, where the Underline is 
22      projected to be.  
23          So NPI's vision of bringing together all of 
24      these different potential park lands and 
25      creating a kind of synergy and a unity with the 
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1      Underline is really the notion of how we're 
2      bringing a park to the space.  It's already 
3      public lands, but nobody has taken the 
4      initiative to be the catalyst and start talking 
5      to the different municipalities to be able to 
6      bring forth a vision, and as you heard earlier, 
7      they are going to fund one quarter mile of the 
8      Underline, which is a portion -- the portion 
9      that runs right there, right along the west 
10      side of the parcel.  
11          So it's a significant park improvement that 
12      I think will certainly up the ante of our 
13      public park space and increase the quality of 
14      life.  
15          This is a view of some of what that will 
16      look like.  It's quite a wide swath.  It's over 
17      200 feet of green space, and it will be built 
18      out and framed or bookended between the 
19      existing project, on the left of the drawing, 
20      which is the Gables Grand, and the proposed 
21      project, which is Gables Station, on the right.  
22      And so it's a large green median that rambles 
23      through, including active play and passive 
24      play.  
25          These are a series of diagrams that talk 
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1      about the extent to which green space is being 
2      increased, and the open space -- the notion of 
3      a PAD had been mentioned to you.  The open 
4      space, the ground floor open space of the lot, 
5      of the actual parcel, is 45 percent.  So 
6      between sidewalks, arcades, colonnades, 
7      squares, parks and so on, almost half of the 
8      ground floor of this parcel is being given back 
9      to the public, 45 percent.  
10          When you put that together with the -- I'm 
11      sorry, so that's two acres, 87,000 and change, 
12      two acres.  When you add these two acres, with 
13      the three acres of the park just west, that is 
14      being created by that kind of synergy and 
15      collaboration, we will have five acres of 
16      public open space on the ground floor, as a 
17      result of the construction of this project, and 
18      those five acres are being improved with the 
19      Underline and other improvements within the 
20      parcel, which, again, is a significant 
21      contribution to the City, and it's part of this 
22      notion of livability and play and the making of 
23      a park here.  
24          So I'd like to talk for a moment about the 
25      street, the new street, which again we're 
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1      calling for the moment Gables Station Drive.  
2      That is the street that is immediately to the 
3      west of the parcel.  There is no street there 
4      currently.  There is US-1, and the next 
5      official -- or the next built street is Ponce.  
6      And for reasons of access and entry and exit 
7      and approach and even handicap curb access, 
8      we're proposing an additional street, that does 
9      a great deal in bringing people here, both as 
10      pedestrians and as vehicular traffic, but it 
11      also creates a kind of filter, where people 
12      from across the Highway can walk through the 
13      property, to the green park, the new park, and 
14      the same in reverse.  So the site acts as a 
15      kind of porous field, where people can travel 
16      through.  
17          Let me talk a little bit about the length 
18      of the project and how the massing and the 
19      volumetrics of the project have been broken 
20      down.  So, as we said, the project is nearly 
21      1,200 square feet, US-1 frontage, and it's been 
22      broken down into sort of five mini blocks, if 
23      you will, which are kind of building elements.  
24          They are, on an average, about 150 feet 
25      deep, each mini block, and they range from 280 

Page 22
1      to about 300 feet long, with their frontage on 
2      the US-1 sidewalk.  And this pretty much 
3      conditions the volumetric massing, which you 
4      can see there in the perspective, where the 
5      project on the right, you can see that there's 
6      a cutting of the grain in the short dimension, 
7      and in the cutting of the grain is where a 
8      majority of entrances or special places happen.  
9          The first cut, which is the one furthest 
10      north, is the vehicular entry into the site, 
11      and also has two paseos, two pedestrian 
12      passages, that cut through it.  The second cut 
13      is where the square, the third protagonist that 
14      I mentioned, this kind of square is, and we'll 
15      talk about the square later, and then I think 
16      it's important to note that at the very 
17      southern tip, what we call the nose of the 
18      parcel, there is a green park there, that 
19      mirrors a verdant space existing in the tip of 
20      that gas station.  
21          There's a wonderful stand of native trees, 
22      some black olives and oaks, and by recognizing 
23      them and drawing them and providing a kind of 
24      partner on the opposite side, when you go 
25      through the Grand Avenue approach, you'll 
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1      actually go under a canopy, under a tree 
2      canopy, to Le Jeune.  
3          Lastly, and most importantly, in the 
4      drawing on the left, you see clearly the height 
5      of the rail, the height of the rail, and as has 
6      been mentioned, the rail height and speeding 
7      car are at about 35 feet of height above grade.  
8      So it was very important to stack the program 
9      in these buildings in such a way that we could 
10      avoid all of the negative impact of having the 
11      speeding cars.  
12          So, as is normative, all of the ground 
13      floor space is commercial, obviously, and 
14      there's a varied scale of commercial, which 
15      we'll talk about later.  
16          The rail car is moving across at that 
17      35-foot height, and so all of the parking is 
18      being placed at that sectional height of the 
19      project, so that the rails are moving through 
20      the levels -- or parallel to the levels of 
21      parking, and then the dwelling units of the 
22      apartment buildings occur well above that, two 
23      stories or three stories of parking above that.  
24          Let me speak a little bit about the three 
25      buildings, if you will, and the programmatic 
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1      distribution of the buildings.  You've heard 
2      there's a hotel of about 150 keys.  There are 
3      apartment buildings of about 450.  There's 
4      60,000 square feet of commercial, 10,000 square 
5      feet of which is restaurant, right.  And 
6      they're distributed in three buildings.  So 
7      let's call the northern one Building 1, then 
8      the middle building, and Building 3.  
9          So Building 1 and 2 are programmatically 
10      the same.  They have retail on the ground 
11      floor.  They have five floors of structured 
12      parking, which are elevating the dorm units 
13      well above the rail.  And those buildings are 
14      U-shaped, and the open space of the "U" faces 
15      US-1 and provides pool decks and other public 
16      amenities at that level.  
17          The last building, which is Building 3, 
18      let's say, is the one with the greatest mixture 
19      of uses.  It has retail on the ground floor, no 
20      parking.  All of the parking for the entire 
21      project is banked in Building 1 and 2.  So 
22      Building 3 has all habitable program, all of 
23      the way to the sidewalk, which does a great 
24      deal to enliven the sidewalk.  
25          So Building 3 has no parking, retail on the 
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1      ground floor.  The middle body of the building 
2      is hotel, and the side of the building which is 
3      adjacent to the rail has all of the hotel back 
4      of house functions, kitchens, laundries, linen 
5      storage, et cetera, so, again, we could guard 
6      against the noise and the occurrence of the 
7      rail.  The rooms are on the US-1 side, and, 
8      then -- above the height of the rail, and then 
9      the apartment buildings are above that.  
10          So the building has been carefully composed 
11      sectionally to give quality of life issues, but 
12      deal with the rail, and that is the principal 
13      reason for the height asked, because the height 
14      of the rail, is which 35 feet, is a little more 
15      than what we're asking for.  The recommended 
16      height was 120.  It was an approval, with a 
17      condition of a recommended approval height of 
18      120, and these buildings average at about 150.  
19      The difference being 30 feet.  The rail cars 
20      are riding at 30 to 35 feet of height.  That's 
21      the reason to work that section and work those 
22      volumetrics, to get all of the habitable space 
23      well above or well below the rail.  
24          So this board is an enlargement of what you 
25      saw just previously.  I'd just like to talk 
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1      about a couple of micro-scale planning issues 
2      with relationship to this board.  Again, it's a 
3      very long, narrow lot, but you can start to 
4      see -- by the way, this is a deceleration lane 
5      from US-1, that is cut within our property, so 
6      that one can handle turning in, and our traffic 
7      engineer is here, he can certainly answer any 
8      questions, but this project is generating half 
9      the amount of traffic than the previously 
10      approved single use project generated.  And 
11      inspite of that, we're still doing a number of 
12      traffic calmings and being sensitive to the 
13      traffic.  
14          But all of the buildings, as you can see on 
15      the east, south and north side, are wrapped 
16      with very generous arcades, ranging from 12 to 
17      sometimes 18 or more feet wide.  This allows 
18      that notion of the site acting like a kind of 
19      filter, where people can walk through all of 
20      it, and we are providing frontages to the 
21      commercial on all sides.  The most difficult 
22      side, obviously being the US-1 side, is planted 
23      and buffered, and it's very easy, every 300 
24      feet, you can cross the site through a very 
25      generous width and get to the park side.  
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1          The side on the west, the side that is 
2      adjacent to the rail, is the one side that does 
3      not have an arcade or a colonnade, and the 
4      reason for that is, in working with the 
5      Planning Staff, we realized that the 
6      infrastructure of the Metro actually is a form 
7      of an arcade and has a soffit or a ceiling and 
8      shades that space.  So to create even greater 
9      shade on the northwest side would have been a 
10      deterrence.  So, for that reason, and working 
11      with Staff, that side is a very lively 
12      pedestrian small street, the new street, but it 
13      has no arcades.  There will be awnings and 
14      other architectural features that animate that 
15      site, and you will be walking along the 
16      Underline, so you'll see people jogging and 
17      biking and it will be that kind of a very 
18      lovely, lively environment.  
19          Because of the narrowness of the site, and 
20      we have been through this many times with 
21      Staff, it's impossible to service the site from 
22      anywhere but one of the principal streets.  So 
23      the servicing is being done from that north 
24      street.  You can't do it from US-1.  You can't 
25      have trucks backing up on US-1.  And the other 
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1      streets are too short.  So that is something 
2      that we have to deal with, but, again, I think 
3      the project deals with it as best as it can be.  
4      It's one of the hardships of the project.  
5          So we've talked about the park, and we've 
6      talked about the street.  And, if I may, for 
7      just an instance, talk about the square.  So 
8      the square is this portion here, which is the 
9      third sort of protagonist of public urban realm 
10      sort of experiences.  It's a hundred feet by 
11      175 feet.  It takes the whole width.  And there 
12      is a fountain that is producing a curtain of 
13      water, to provide white noise to the hum of the 
14      vehicles.  And the curtain is also blocking 
15      views in.  
16          Then there is a square, which you'll see 
17      more current renditions of, which will be 
18      filled with cafes, because the spaces around it 
19      are lined with cafes and restaurants and alike.  
20      And you see a signature view of the project 
21      there, which also talks about, in a way, 
22      building the bookend to Gables Ponce, and 
23      finally coordinating and planting that swath of 
24      green space that will be the park, animated by 
25      the kind of speed and connectivity of the rail.  
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1          These are a series of views that I believe 
2      Mr. Trias sent to you this morning or may have 
3      given you when you walked in.  They are further 
4      developments of the aesthetics of the square.  
5      So you see kind of a view, on the left, which 
6      shows the width of the square, opening to the 
7      Underline, and on the right, you see a 
8      sectional cut, which is a more technical 
9      drawing, that shows the great bridge, the 
10      bridge that is masking US-1.  This is the US-1 
11      side.  This is the square.  This is the 
12      Underline side, with the rail, and then is the 
13      park.  
14          I think it's important to mention that at 
15      the narrowest, we are 35 feet from the rail.  
16      You know, the rail and this property line are 
17      not parallel.  The rail converges.  But at the 
18      narrowest, that train is moving 35 feet away 
19      from our building facade, which is why the 
20      stacking and the height became so important.  
21          And, then, between the rail and the first 
22      building, on the opposite side of Ponce, and 
23      the small commercial buildings, and the Gables 
24      Ponce Building is over 130 feet, so you can see 
25      why we had to watch and guard ourselves against 

Page 30
1      the train, but this public space, I think, will 
2      be very active, and is a signature space of the 
3      project.  
4          I'm just going to show you a series of 
5      drawings about it.  It's configured, as I said, 
6      as a 155 by 100 foot urban room.  There are 
7      colonnades all around it, and the featured 
8      architectural element is this bridge, which 
9      follows the tradition of Mediterranean 
10      architecture in the Gables, has an arcade on 
11      the first floor, a colonnade on the second 
12      floor, and it gathers everyone coming out of 
13      the parking garage, everyone going to the 
14      hotel, and it delivers them onto the square 
15      through this monumental stair that you see 
16      there in that drawing.  
17          And I think we just have one more.  Yeah, 
18      that's a section in the other direction, with 
19      the two buildings on either side, and then the 
20      bridge shown at a distance.  I show it, because 
21      we've had a number of discussions about scale 
22      in the public realm and proportions and we know 
23      Merrick's recommendation of proportionality of 
24      streets and spaces, and this follows the one to 
25      1.5 rule.  So it's 150 feet tall, between 147 
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1      and 160, and it's 100 feet wide.  
2          So we present the project to you.  We're 
3      available for any questions and answers and 
4      we're happy to present it, because we feel that 
5      it follows this pride and tradition of 
6      City-making that we have enjoyed for 90 years.  
7          Thank you.  
8          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you. 
9          Mr. Bass, does that wrap up the Applicant's 
10      presentation?  
11          MR. BASS:  Yeah.  I know there are people 
12      to speak from the public, and I know that the 
13      Planning Department would like to make a 
14      presentation, so that concludes the Applicant's 
15      presentation.  If we may have just a moment or 
16      two for rebuttal. 
17          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  Of course.  
18      Thank you.  
19          Mr. Trias.  
20          MR. TRIAS:  Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
21      First of all, I want to thank you all for 
22      joining us for a Special Meeting.  I think the 
23      citizens know that you serve as volunteers, and 
24      that's a lot of your time that you're donating.  
25          In front of you, you have an updated set of 
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1      drawings, and also the comments from the Design 
2      Review Committee of the Underline, and I gave 
3      that to you today.  The drawings represent the 
4      most recent development of the architecture, 
5      which the architect has been working on since 
6      they made a presentation to the Board of 
7      Architects a couple of weeks ago.  
8          In addition, you also have the PowerPoint 
9      presentation in front of you.  So what I'll do 
10      is, I'll give the PowerPoint and then answer 
11      any questions you may have.  
12          So can I have the PowerPoint please?  Thank 
13      you very much.  
14          The Applicant explained the location of the 
15      project.  I think that most of us who are from 
16      the Miami area have always seen it as a parking 
17      lot.  It's not exactly a parking lot, in terms 
18      of use, but that's the way it looks.  That is 
19      the way it is designed at this point.  
20          The area around it is fully developed.  As 
21      the Applicant mentioned, this is within the 
22      Industrial area of the City.  Now, in Coral 
23      Gables, what that means is that the Mixed-Use 
24      area, has the Mixed-Use Overlay in that area, 
25      allows and encourages the type of development 
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1      that has happened immediately to the north of 
2      the property.  
3          If you look at the three dimensional 
4      quality of the area, you can see that there are 
5      some significant buildings already built 
6      towards the north of the property.  And you've 
7      also reviewed, recently, at least one more 
8      project.  So there are some very interesting 
9      projects going on.  And then the Underline and 
10      the Metrorail is right there.  
11          US-1 has been a major thoroughfare for a 
12      very, very, long time, and then immediately to 
13      the east of US-1 is mostly single-family 
14      neighborhoods most throughout that area.  The 
15      MacFarlane Homestead District is in the City of 
16      Coral Gables, and then there are some areas in 
17      the City of Miami beyond that District.  
18          The project, as the Applicant has shown, 
19      fits right in that sliver of land between US-1 
20      and Metrorail, and it's at a scale that is 
21      comparable to some of the most recent Mixed-Use 
22      developments that have been taking place in the 
23      District.  
24          The Applicant has explained the effort to 
25      create high quality pedestrian areas, and 
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1      they're still working on it, and that is one of 
2      the conditions that we have.  And we'll go over 
3      all of that in more detail later on, but I 
4      would like you to understand, this as a work in 
5      progress, in terms of the architecture and the 
6      design.  
7          The Existing and Future Land Use and Zoning 
8      is Industrial, as we said before, which 
9      includes the Mixed-Use -- that existing 
10      Mixed-Use Overlay, and the request has five 
11      items.  
12          Item Number 1 is a Comprehensive Plan 
13      Amendment.  Number 2 is a Zoning Code Map 
14      Amendment.  Number 3 is a Text Amendment to the 
15      Zoning Code.  Number 4 is a PAD, the Planned 
16      Area Development.  And Number 5 is the 
17      Mixed-Use Site Plan.  
18          And this is all fairly technical, in terms 
19      of the reason why we have five requests, but 
20      the reality is that it's basically one big 
21      idea, that in order to be implemented, from a 
22      technical point of view, we have to do five 
23      different things.  
24          The Site Plan, as explained by the 
25      Applicant, includes their property and the 
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1      property beyond that's actually, in the 
2      right-of-way of Metrorail, which is controlled 
3      by the County Transportation Department at this 
4      point.  And the reason I say that that's part 
5      of the project is because those are some of the 
6      Conditions of Approval, the fact that some 
7      improvement in that area is proposed.  
8          I'm having difficulties with the 
9      PowerPoint.  Can I have the next slide, please?  
10          It's working now.  Very good.  
11          The large 11 by 17 document that you have 
12      before you has some outdated drawings, but, in 
13      general, the big ideas are the same.  The 
14      details of the drawings have evolved since the 
15      Applicant submitted these drawings, but in 
16      terms of massing, in terms of size, all of that 
17      is the same.  
18          The review timeline, as with all projects, 
19      this has been reviewed multiple times.  It went 
20      to the DRC in January.  The Board of Architects 
21      reviewed it in April, April 28th, and the Board 
22      of Architects approved it conceptually, and 
23      they expect to review it again, perhaps several 
24      times, to refine the quality of the 
25      architecture.  There was a required 
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1      neighborhood meeting in April, also, and today 
2      we're dealing with the Planning and Zoning 
3      meeting.  
4          Staff has reviewed the application.  All of 
5      the different departments have had a chance to 
6      make comments and review them.  However, there 
7      are some outstanding reviews that will take 
8      place between now and the final approval, and 
9      we can go into more detail, if we need to.  
10      Most of them deal with traffic.  
11          Letters were mailed to the property owners 
12      within 1,500 feet, and that's the map that 
13      shows the area.  We had two -- or there were 
14      two mailings, one of the neighborhood meeting 
15      and also the Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  
16      The property was posted three times, and there 
17      were three website postings and one newspaper 
18      advertisement.  
19          The first request, the Comprehensive Plan 
20      request, is very similar to a request that was 
21      reviewed recently, which was the Paseo request, 
22      in which the Land Use was requested to be 
23      Mixed-Use.  The same type of request is taking 
24      place here.  
25          The Mixed-Use Land Use allows for more 
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1      precise regulations, in terms of height and 
2      FAR, et cetera, than, for example, the 
3      High-Rise Land Use will be.  So from the point 
4      of view of the City and the protection of the 
5      neighbors, I think it's a good choice, and that 
6      is what the Applicant is requesting.  
7          The attorney explained that you have to 
8      make some findings of fact and those are listed 
9      in the PowerPoint and also in the Staff report, 
10      and basically what it is, is that the request 
11      complies with the Comprehensive Plan standards 
12      of review and they deal with the objectives of 
13      the City, in the big picture, but also with the 
14      issues about traffic and infrastructure that 
15      we're all very familiar with.  
16          So Staff has reviewed the request, and it 
17      complies.  Therefore, Staff recommends approval 
18      of the Comprehensive Plan request to Mixed-Use, 
19      as the standards have been met.  
20          Now, in terms of Zoning, the request is to 
21      also change the Zoning to Commercial.  Right 
22      now the Zoning is Industrial.  The Zoning of 
23      Commercial allows for the Mixed-Use request 
24      that is coming later.  So that is the main 
25      reason for that.  
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1          So what happens is that that Zoning is 
2      appropriate for that area, and, again, the 
3      findings of fact also include that it is 
4      consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as it 
5      does promote the high quality development, the 
6      new development, in an area that needs it, and 
7      it also will have a positive effect on the 
8      neighboring properties.  Staff recommends 
9      approval, as the standards of review are 
10      satisfied.  
11          Now, Request Number 3 is the Zoning Code 
12      Text Amendment, and, this, in terms of the 
13      concept, what this has to do with is with the 
14      specific regulations of that Mixed-Use, okay.  
15      So the Comprehensive Plan says that whenever a 
16      property has the Mixed-Use Land Use, then there 
17      has to be Zoning Regulations that deal with FAR 
18      and height.  So here you're able to target 
19      those regulations very precisely to the 
20      project.  
21          The Applicant has requested 160 feet in 
22      height.  That is the request of the Applicant.  
23      What Staff has expressed in the Staff report is 
24      that, in the recent past, in this area, 
25      particularly in the Industrial area, just to 
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1      the north of this parcel, the Planning and 
2      Zoning Board and the Commission have approved 
3      120 feet, recently.  
4          So, in our review, that seems to be the 
5      current discussion, in terms of policy, and 
6      that is why, in the Staff report, we have 
7      recommended 120.  If you want to make some 
8      other recommendation and if the Commission 
9      chooses to set a different policy, certainly 
10      they have that authority and they're able to do 
11      that.  
12          In addition, the floor area ratio is 
13      limited to the 3.5, which, as you know, is the 
14      typical maximum floor area ratio in any project 
15      that has Mediterranean bonus.  So it's a 
16      typical size in Coral Gables.  And, also, the 
17      density in the request is that it be 140 units 
18      per acre, which reflects the project as 
19      presented.  
20          Now, Staff has reviewed this request, and 
21      we do find, also, that it complies with the 
22      Comprehensive Plan.  And the Staff 
23      recommendation is approval, with modifications.  
24      And the modifications is that the setback 
25      requirements on Grand Avenue should not be 
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1      removed.  And we may discuss this further, if 
2      need be.  But one of the important 
3      recommendations, which is the one that is a 
4      policy choice, is the one that sets the height 
5      as 120.  And, again, this is just to be 
6      consistent with recent discussions in the City.  
7      And if there's a different policy view, that's 
8      a perfectly appropriate issue to discuss.
9          Request Number 4 is the Planned Area 
10      Development.  The Planned Area Development, as 
11      you all know, allows for customizing the design 
12      of a project to make it as good as it can be, 
13      in terms of the context and the way it responds 
14      to existing conditions.  So the Planned Area 
15      Development also has some beneficial aspects to 
16      it, which were discussed by the architect, 
17      which is the additional requirement for public 
18      open space, and that was explained in great 
19      detail.  
20          The statistics of the request is that the 
21      area is a little over four acres.  FAR, as I 
22      said, was 3.5.  And the request of the 
23      Applicant is that one building is going to be 
24      160 in habitable height, and the other two 
25      buildings are going to be 148.  So that is what 
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1      the Applicant is requesting.  
2          The program is a perfectly appropriate 
3      Mixed-Use balance between ground floor retail 
4      and then a hotel and a variety of units of 
5      different sizes and different bedrooms, and 
6      about two acres of public areas on-site, and 
7      the four acres in the Underline, 969 parking 
8      spaces, which, by the way, is the result of a 
9      combination of the Shared Parking that you 
10      recently have reviewed and adopted, and also 
11      the new regulations for parking for residential 
12      units, particularly the one bedroom, one space 
13      regulation.  
14          There are multiple public benefits, and 
15      that is one of the findings that are made 
16      whenever a Planned Area Development is 
17      proposed, and what I would say is that the more 
18      evident benefits have to do with open space, 
19      have to do with the pedestrian areas, also 
20      contributions to the trolley, which are in the 
21      Conditions of Approval, some of the built in 
22      improvements along US-1, in particular, 
23      crosswalks and pedestrian enhancements, some 
24      better parking, public parking options around 
25      the site.  If you look at it in detail, there's 
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1      parallel parking all over the place.  In fact, 
2      I think it could be even improved, if we work 
3      on it a little bit more, better landscape on 
4      US-1.  Certainly that buffer that they're 
5      proposing enhances the aesthetics of US-1, 
6      bicycle parking and support facilities, 
7      electric car charging stations, the LEED 
8      Silver, which is a requirement now, but it's 
9      certainly a benefit, and multiple ways to walk 
10      around the site on very high quality arcades 
11      and sidewalks.  
12          The Standards of Review also include these 
13      findings of fact, that the PAD is consistent 
14      with the Comprehensive Plan, and that, in fact, 
15      the special aspects of the project provide 
16      public benefits.  And that is something that I 
17      think is one of the findings that we 
18      recommend -- Staff believes that it does 
19      comply.  Therefore, Request Number 4, which is 
20      the Planned Area Development, Staff recommends 
21      approval with conditions.  And the conditions 
22      are extensive and they're listed in the Staff 
23      report.  So whenever we need to, we can go over 
24      them in some detail.  
25          The final request is the Mixed-Use Site 
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1      Plan, which is basically what allows for the 
2      residential component of the project, once a 
3      property is zoned Commercial.  I think that the 
4      Applicant has explained this in some detail, 
5      and I just want to make clear just one unique 
6      characteristic of this project, which is that 
7      the hotel, you see that red line in the 
8      building, the hotel is below that red line.  So 
9      it's actually like the base of that building, 
10      it's not the whole building.  The upper stories 
11      of that building, towards the west, is actually 
12      residential.  I want to make that clear, 
13      because, to me, it's significant.  
14          Now, in the drawings that we provided 
15      today, that building is not fully -- or, in 
16      fact, it's blank.  It's not designed.  They're 
17      still working on the design.  This is the 
18      drawings that were provided to you in your 
19      package, which are still being improved.  So 
20      that's one of the issues that I think is still 
21      a little bit up in the air.  
22          But based on the meeting that I had this 
23      morning with the architect, the design has 
24      improved significantly, and hopefully it will 
25      be something that we can get very soon for 
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1      review.  
2          The rest of it is pretty much as expected.  
3      Gables Ponce is right towards the north, more 
4      or less, the north, and then the US-1 frontage, 
5      as you can see, completely is transformed into 
6      a much more pedestrian friendly area, with 
7      retail at the ground level.  
8          The findings of fact also include that the 
9      proposed Mixed-Use, which is a conditional use, 
10      as you well know, is consistent with the 
11      Comprehensive Plan and Staff believes it is, 
12      and Staff recommends approval with 
13      conditions -- again, fairly extensive 
14      conditions, that are included in your Staff 
15      report.  
16          The Conditions of Approval include the 
17      maximum height, which we could discuss, but 
18      also include issues that I think are still not 
19      fully reviewed, and some of them is, for 
20      example, that Public Works needs to finalize 
21      some of the review of the traffic impact, and 
22      also the civil engineering plans, and in terms 
23      of landscape, from my perspective, the design 
24      of the Underline is still being discussed.  
25          We have very good comments from the 
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1      committee that reviews the Underline, but I 
2      would interpret that as a placeholder that 
3      needs to be further refined, and there are 
4      multiple issues that deal with that project, 
5      including some existing parking that we may 
6      want to keep some, or not, depending on the 
7      priorities of the City.  And then some existing 
8      uses, such as the Passport Office, the very new 
9      Passport Office that is right there.  So all of 
10      that is conceptual at this point, and I would 
11      expect that it's refined significantly in the 
12      next few weeks.  
13          In addition, the architectural plans, as I 
14      mentioned, are also conceptual at this point, 
15      and they have to be significantly reviewed and 
16      improved.  So one of the conditions is that the 
17      Board of Architects will have to review them in 
18      more detail.  We've done this in the past, in 
19      some of the larger projects, and I think it has 
20      worked effectively, but I want you to be aware 
21      of that.  
22          The issue of the building height, as 
23      illustrated in this image, if you look at this 
24      diagram, the red is the 120, the 160 is what 
25      they're proposing.  That gives you an idea of 
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1      the scope of what we're talking about, in terms 
2      of massing and in terms of design.  And in 
3      Buildings B and C, it's 148, and, again, that's 
4      the 120.  
5          The Conditions of Approval include mobility 
6      contributions, US-1 pedestrian improvements, 
7      Underline improvements, on-street parking, the 
8      additional City reviews that I mentioned, peer 
9      review and inspection, a fully finalized 
10      landscape plan, signage, resolution of the 
11      building height issue, parking garage design, 
12      which they've already began to address with the 
13      more recent drawings provided to you today.  
14          The loading areas, which is that new street 
15      that Mr. Hernandez was mentioning about, some 
16      of the pedestrian access, the paseos, a lot of 
17      these issues are being worked on and were part 
18      of the presentation, and I'm very happy to see 
19      that there is positive progress on them.  And 
20      then construction staging, which is a 
21      requirement, traffic improvements, the 
22      encroachment plan, which includes a significant 
23      issue, which is that that street that is being 
24      proposed is actually not on their property.  
25      It's on the right-of-way of Metrorail.  So I 
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1      wanted to make that clear, also, so there is no 
2      confusion on that issue, and a variety of other 
3      typical Conditions of Approval.  
4          The Underline, as I said, I see it as a 
5      placeholder, as ideas, but certainly not as a 
6      final plan at this point.  And, interestingly, 
7      the rendering that the Applicant showed had 
8      more green than the original submittal.  The 
9      original submittal, as you can see, has a 
10      parking lot there.  The rendering they showed, 
11      they have made it green.  In addition to that, 
12      they also made green the plaza in the Grand 
13      Avenue entrance.  So there are some changes 
14      that I found interesting in the presentation 
15      that the Applicant gave, but they simply 
16      reflect the fact that the final design is not 
17      done yet, it's still a work in progress.  
18          The US-1 pedestrian improvements focus 
19      mostly on either end of the project, the fact 
20      that pedestrian areas on Grand Avenue and Ponce 
21      de Leon are non-existent at this point.  So 
22      there's some coordination with the County that 
23      needs to take place to be able to improve that.  
24          And, finally, some of the typical 
25      conditions that need to be done prior to the 
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1      CO, and the quality of the open spaces, the 
2      Applicant -- these are drawings from this 
3      morning.  The Applicant has shown really a 
4      great effort to enhance the quality of the open 
5      spaces and also the quality of the design of 
6      the buildings.  
7          So all of that is going on.  And, as I 
8      said, I want to thank you for taking the time 
9      to have this special meeting, and we have 
10      rushed through this review, and we've done the 
11      best we can, but, as you can see, there are 
12      still some items that need to be finalized.  
13          Thank you.
14          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you, Mr. Trias.  
15          A quick question, some of the items that 
16      still need to be finalized pertain to the Site 
17      Plan, correct?  
18          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  And that's 
20      before us tonight for review?  
21          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
23          Okay.  We'll open up the public hearing.  
24      Jill, do you have any speakers signed up?  
25          THE SECRETARY:  Yes.  We have four 
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1      speakers.  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  
3          THE SECRETARY:  Dr. Brad Richter. 
4          MR. RICHTER:  Hi, I'm Dr. Brad Richter, a 
5      proud owner of the Coral Gables Animal 
6      Hospital, 4569 Ponce de Leon Boulevard.  
7          First of all, I want to say that I have no 
8      objection to development.  I have no objection, 
9      really, to this project, except that I have 
10      some concerns for my area, which is the north 
11      part of Ponce de Leon Boulevard.  There's a 
12      number of businesses there.  There's two animal 
13      hospitals there.  That's the only place, pretty 
14      much left in Coral Gables, that you can have 
15      animal hospitals.  
16          I've been there since 1982.  Dr. Brown was 
17      there before me, for thirty years before that, 
18      and my biggest concern has always been the 
19      traffic on that street and the parking.  
20          I met with Mr. Reynolds and 
21      Mr. Garcia-Serra, and I've seen some renditions 
22      of this project, but what I saw was a little 
23      bit different than what I see today.  Right 
24      now, the parking on that street, on the street 
25      on the north and south side of Ponce, is very 
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1      congested.  Both of those gentlemen are very 
2      sensitive to that.  I've been a proponent on 
3      working on that street for many, many years.  
4          I was instrumental in getting the employee 
5      parking lots twenty or thirty years ago, to 
6      accommodate the employees for the businesses on 
7      the north side of Ponce and for the employees 
8      and for all of the customers.  
9          With all of the development that's 
10      happened, that street has become a traffic 
11      nightmare at certain times of the day.  It's a 
12      parking nightmare at certain times of the day.  
13      And it affects not only my business, but it 
14      affects everybody on that street's business.  
15          For me, selfishly, I have an animal 
16      hospital.  I've been servicing the people of 
17      Coral Gables pretty much most of my 
18      professional career.  My customers need to be 
19      able to park in a reasonable manner and bring 
20      in animals safely and a reasonable distance 
21      from my animal hospital.  I can't ask people to 
22      carry in a large labrador, maybe in the rain, 
23      maybe not in the rain, a significant distance, 
24      when they have an emergency.  I mean, it's a 
25      daily thing.  
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1          Next to me, we have a day school, which I 
2      was not in favor of, but the City let a day 
3      school go into that area.  And if you are there 
4      at certain times of the day, you will see that 
5      that is another nightmare.  
6          It was my understanding that the day school 
7      was to drop off and pick up in the alley.  That 
8      has never happened.  They said, when the 
9      construction of Gables Ponce happened, that was 
10      going to go back.  That has never happened.  
11          You cannot, I don't think, enforce that 
12      that happens.  I mean, people will park where 
13      they are going to park, and I don't think we're 
14      going to put a policeman out there every day to 
15      make sure that they do that, and people that 
16      are dropping off and picking up are going to do 
17      whatever is easiest, and what they do is, they 
18      park up along there, and sometimes they stay 
19      ten minutes, sometimes they stay a lot longer.  
20          The City of Coral Gables has now put the 
21      Passport Office where the old License Bureau 
22      was.  They knew that there was a problem.  When 
23      the License Bureau was there, those people 
24      would park anywhere and everywhere, because 
25      they would come every five years, and if they 
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1      got an eighteen dollar ticket, they really 
2      didn't care, and that was a nightmare.  
3          The City took away the license or they 
4      moved, and now -- and then they had a furniture 
5      store there, which was fine, didn't take up a 
6      lot of parking.  Now they've put the Passport 
7      Office there, which takes up a lot of parking 
8      again.  
9          The plans that I saw here today -- and I 
10      have to look at it better -- but I think it 
11      eliminated all of the employee parking or most 
12      of the employee parking, so I don't know where 
13      my employees are going to park, where the 
14      school instructors are going to park, where the 
15      Passport people are really going to park, and 
16      now we have a nice park, which I'm all in favor 
17      of, and we have the Underline, the people that 
18      live in this area will not have a problem 
19      getting to that park, but, let's say, the 
20      people that want to use the Underline and come 
21      to that nice, beautiful park, where are they 
22      going to park?  
23          I don't think they're going to park in the 
24      hotel parking lot.  I think they're going to 
25      park along Ponce, if they can, with their 
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1      bicycles, and bring out their bikes.  And so 
2      now the few spaces that might be there are 
3      going to be taken up by people that are 
4      visiting the park and using the Underline, and 
5      those people could be two or three or four 
6      hours at a time taking up a space.  
7          So I'm asking the City, the Commissioners, 
8      to really think about the traffic on that 
9      street, to think about the employee parking, 
10      and to conduct a parking study, because, right 
11      now, you cannot buy an employee parking pass.  
12          For the last ten years, I have 20 of them.  
13      I've had 20 of them since the City of Coral 
14      Gables authorized those things.  I know that 
15      the people next door, they sometimes borrow 
16      some of my passes, because they don't have 
17      enough for their teachers, and now with the 
18      Passport Office there, they're going to have a 
19      significant number of employees, and they have, 
20      of course, a lot of people coming for 
21      passports.  
22          So I'm asking the Commissioners and the 
23      City to conduct a parking study, and to tell me 
24      how my -- where my employees are going to park.  
25          I've talked with Mr. Reynolds about maybe 
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1      parking inside of his, but what about the day 
2      school, what about the Passport people?  What 
3      about people that are coming to park?  What 
4      about people that are coming to the commercial 
5      park?  
6          If you can convince me of that, I would be 
7      all in favor of this project, but I need 
8      somebody to tell me where all of these spaces 
9      that are there now -- and there's not enough of 
10      them -- if they disappear, where are all of my 
11      employees and everybody else's employees going 
12      to park?  
13          Thank you.  
14          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
15          (Inaudible.)
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I'm going to finish the 
17      -- so that way we're going not going to have a 
18      one-on-one after every speaker potentially.  
19      Thank you.  
20          Jill, our next speaker, please.  
21          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Berkowitz.  
22          MR. BERKOWITZ:  Good evening.  My name is 
23      Jeff Berkowitz.  I'm a 35-year resident of the 
24      City of Coral Gables.  I am the owner of this 
25      property, which is under contract to NP.  
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1          I'd like to complement NP on what I 
2      consider -- and their team, on what I consider 
3      to be a brilliantly conceived plan.  This 
4      particular property, which I've owned for a 
5      number of years, is unique in Coral Gables.  
6      It's an oasis, without neighbors.  It has a gas 
7      station to the south.  It has US-1 -- and I 
8      don't need to tell anybody how heavily 
9      trafficked US-1 is -- to the east.  It has an 
10      automobile dealership to the north.  And it has 
11      Metrorail to the west.  
12          And I think it is a testament to this 
13      developer and to his team that there are not 
14      serious numbers of people and neighbors here to 
15      oppose the project, rather there are neighbors 
16      here to support the project.  
17          So ultimately the issue here is height, and 
18      you heard the argument about how important it 
19      is to move the residential portion of the 
20      project up, to avoid the noise of the 
21      Metrorail.  
22          I designed a project -- Mike, if you don't 
23      mind, and haven't had it fully approved by the 
24      Coral Gables Commission -- to do a 360,000 
25      square foot retail project, which was far more 
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1      intense, in terms of traffic.  
2          But if you were to compare what this 
3      developer is offering this community, to what 
4      has been approved on this site, it should be 
5      clear that they have brought forward to this 
6      community a far superior project.  
7          So let me tell you the argument that we 
8      haven't heard for the increased height they're 
9      seeking, and I'm supportive of that.  Number 
10      One, they have a four-and-a-half acre -- almost 
11      a four-and-a-half acre site, fully two acres of 
12      which are being devoted to public spaces.  
13      Alternatively, they could squash the project, 
14      and they could shrink the public spaces, and 
15      they wouldn't need that.  But if there's any 
16      location in all of Coral Gables that justifies 
17      this kind of height, it's in this oasis, where 
18      there's US-1 on one side, and Metrorail on 
19      another, and a gas station on another, and an 
20      auto dealership on the fourth side.  
21          The other thing that nobody has mentioned 
22      is the fact that Florida Power & Light is 
23      looking to increase its nuclear power plant, 
24      and in conjunction with that, it is proposing 
25      that it have the ability to run high powered 
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1      transmission lines down this corridor, which 
2      would run, I believe, right down Ponce.  
3          Now, the City of Miami, the City of 
4      Pinecrest, the City of South Miami, and, at one 
5      point, the City of Coral Gables, all sued to 
6      stop that.  The City of Coral Gables, unique 
7      among those other municipalities who continue 
8      the fight against those transmission lines, 
9      settled with Florida Power & Light, and have 
10      invited those high powered transmission lines 
11      to be located in the proximity of this project.  
12          And there is another reason that we need to 
13      get those residences higher and up above those 
14      high powered transmission lines.  Arguably, 
15      they're ugly, and there are those out there who 
16      would argue that they are dangerous.  So I'm 
17      going to urge your support.  I want to 
18      congratulate you and your team and invite your 
19      support.  Thank you for hearing me out.  
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
21          THE SECRETARY:  Ms. Cooper-Baker.  
22          MS. COOPER-BAKER:  Good evening.  My name 
23      is Leona Louise Cooper-Baker, and I always like 
24      to begin by saying that I was born in the City 
25      of Coral Gables, that little section that's 

Page 58
1      located just west of Carver Elementary School.  
2      It's called the Golden Gates.  
3          And another reason why I'm standing here is 
4      to let you know that having been born and 
5      raised on the same site where I still live 
6      today, I've seen all kinds of changes, and I'm 
7      also very proud to say that I've lived on that 
8      site almost 80 years, and never moved, only to 
9      go to college and come back.  
10          I stand before you today to say that I 
11      approve the project that the members of the 
12      team have talked about and they have presented 
13      here tonight, and another reason why I am 
14      especially proud of it is because they have 
15      taken the time to come to our homeowners' 
16      meetings, and we don't get that all of the 
17      time, to explain to us exactly what was going 
18      on and to answer our questions.  
19          And another reason that I'm very proud is 
20      because they kind of recognized us and know 
21      that being of a Bahamian descendent family, 
22      they're going to recognize the kinds of 
23      contributions that my parents and so many 
24      others have made to the City of Coral Gables.  
25      A lot of people don't realize that, but that 

Page 59
1      happened.  And I'm also standing here thinking 
2      about my brother, Bill Cooper, if he were 
3      alive, and many of you remember him, he was the 
4      president of our homeowners', and he was 
5      standing here all of the time, he would come, 
6      and his wife, Leona, who isn't able to be here 
7      tonight, but she is still a very important part 
8      of your homeowners'.  
9          So I'd ask you tonight to please consider 
10      all of the requests that they have made, and I 
11      look forward to working with them, because I 
12      understand that we're going to do some things 
13      to work with the Underline project, and I get a 
14      chance to show off all of the slides and 
15      pictures of the Bahamians who helped to make 
16      this City what it is today, and I'd like you to 
17      know that I support their project.  
18          Thank you for allowing me to speak.  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  And before 
20      you leave, I've been reminded, I've been 
21      slacking in my duties.  I need, and also from 
22      Mr. Berkowitz, your address, please.
23          MS. COOPER-BAKER:  Oh, I'm so sorry.  201 
24      Washington Drive.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.
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1          MS. COOPER-BAKER:  The corner of Lincoln 
2      and Washington Drive.  
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Perfect.  Thank you. 
4          MS. COOPER-BAKER:  Thank you. 
5          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Mr. Berkowitz, I know 
6      you said you've lived in the City a few 
7      decades, but I don't think we got your address.
8          MR. BERKOWITZ:  I reside at 160 Edgewater 
9      Drive, in Coral Gables.  
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
11          THE SECRETARY:  Judith Davis.  
12          MR. WU:  Mr. Chair, I believe we need to 
13      swear in the speaker. 
14          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  You need to be sworn 
15      in, ma'am?  You were not sworn in earlier, 
16      correct?  
17          MS. DAVIS:  My name is Judith Davis and I 
18      live at -- 
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  One moment, please.  
20      I'm sorry, you need to be -- okay.
21          MS. DAVIS:  Sworn in.  Okay. 
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  If we could 
23      please swear in the speaker. 
24          (Thereupon, Judith Davis was sworn.)
25          MS. DAVIS:  I do.  
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1          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you. 
2          MS. DAVIS:  Okay.  Now that we took care of 
3      that, my name is Judith Davis, and I reside at 
4      236 Washington Drive.  And like Mrs. Baker, I 
5      have been a life-long resident of Coral Gables.  
6      I was born in the MacFarlane area, and I now 
7      live in Golden Gates.  And I've lived in both 
8      areas for the last 68 years, off and on.  
9          I've canvassed my neighborhood.  I attended 
10      the homeowners meetings, when the group spoke 
11      and did their presentation.  I was impressed by 
12      the idea of having a hotel and retail spaces so 
13      close to where I live.  When the renewal came 
14      in, we lost a lot of little mom and pop stores 
15      that we had in the neighborhood.  We lost a lot 
16      of jobs that we had in the neighborhood.  
17      Something like this will give us, in close 
18      proximity to where we live, retail space and a 
19      hotel, which will provide for the economic 
20      development of the community.  I'm looking 
21      forward to that.  
22          I canvassed my neighborhood, and I got a 
23      list got a list of people who signed -- I have 
24      16 plus names, and I had to discuss with 
25      them -- even though some of them were present 
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1      at the meeting, they weren't quite as familiar 
2      as I was with the project.  So, yes, we have a 
3      few people who don't think it's good for the 
4      neighborhood, but the majority of us support 
5      the project, and we're looking forward to that 
6      project coming into the community.  
7          I came here before you this evening, 
8      because I support it, and I also encourage my 
9      neighbors to support it, and I hope that you 
10      will allow them to develop that piece of 
11      property.  At one time, I know people who lived 
12      on that property.  So it was a residential 
13      area.  
14          Having cars parked there doesn't do much 
15      for the economic development.  Having a 
16      building there, with retail shops, hotel and 
17      additional housing in the neighborhood, would 
18      encourage growth.  
19          We were looking and discussing how 
20      buildings in the Gables could only be five 
21      stories high, when I was a little kid, and now 
22      we have New York style buildings.  Well, that 
23      has to do with change, and I understand it and 
24      I accept it.  As long as it doesn't block my 
25      breeze from the ocean on the southeast side, I 

Page 63
1      can deal with it.  This is on the north side of 
2      where I live.  
3          Thank you.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
5          THE SECRETARY:  Robert Rovira.  
6          MR. ROVIRA:  Good evening.  My name is 
7      Roberto Rovira.   I'm a resident of Coral 
8      Gables.  I live in 1107 Lisbon Street, and I've 
9      been a resident for almost eleven years here.  
10          Today I come before you as the Chair of the 
11      Design Advisory Committee for the Underline 
12      project, and we submitted some comments 
13      regarding the proposal, and I wanted to go 
14      through a few of the salient points there, but 
15      not before really thanking NPI, because they've 
16      been a supporter of the Underline from the very 
17      beginning and open to discussions.  We've had 
18      an opportunity to meet several times, and I 
19      think that the project has evolved in a very -- 
20      great direction, as far as the goals and the 
21      mission and vision of the Underline are 
22      concerned.  
23          So our Committee is comprised of landscape 
24      architects, architects, planners, and it has a 
25      great representation of academics and 
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1      practitioners.  We've had a chance to go 
2      through the plans, and we have -- in the 
3      package that we submitted, we have basically 
4      eleven design criteria, and I won't go through 
5      all of them, but they range from whether the 
6      project enhances the natural context, whether 
7      it promotes connectivity, how well does it 
8      promote health and well-being, et cetera.  
9          So the Committee went through our criteria 
10      and assessed these things.  And I'd like to go 
11      to -- if you have the packet, it would be on 
12      the second page, but I can go through these 
13      specific issues.  Overall, we feel that the 
14      project is consistent with the goals and the 
15      vision of the Underline.  Where we find areas 
16      where the project can have some improvements is 
17      in one of the eleven criteria, in terms of the 
18      way that it promotes connectivity and public 
19      access.  These are things that in informal 
20      conversations with NPI, they feel that they can 
21      accomplish very well, so I'm really happy about 
22      that.  
23          So the first thing, in today's 
24      presentation, the surface parking seems to have 
25      diminished and we felt that if there is a 
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1      significant amount of surface parking, not only 
2      would that interrupt the flow of the Underline, 
3      but issues of stormwater management and just 
4      the visual impact of an uninterrupted parking 
5      surface, we wanted to make sure that that was 
6      understood as an area that could be improved, 
7      and I'm happy to see that it's moving in that 
8      direction.  
9          The other aspect is the distance and the 
10      separation between the project's ground level 
11      Mixed-Use facilities and the pedestrian-way for 
12      the Underline.  Here, we're thinking, in one of 
13      the plans, the pedestrian-way -- the Underline 
14      consists of two separate paths, an eight-foot 
15      pedestrian path and a ten-foot wide bicycle 
16      path.  We feel that moving or placing the 
17      pedestrian path as close as possible to the 
18      Mixed-Use facilities is good for business, good 
19      for the exposure of this new project.  So we 
20      wanted to make sure that that was enhanced.  
21          The fact that the height, whether it's 120 
22      or 160, of the structure, and you have this 
23      thoroughfare of the vehicular access way or the 
24      drive between the Metrorail and the building, 
25      we spent some time really looking at that, and, 
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1      I guess, in the vehicular circulation and 
2      footprint of that internal drive, we feel that 
3      a lot can be done to really improve the feeling 
4      that you would be crossing the domain of the 
5      car.  
6          We really want to make sure that since this 
7      park, the Underline park, is being put in west 
8      of the Metrorail, that we don't create the 
9      perception of a barrier between that park and 
10      the access to the Mixed-Use facilities and 
11      building.  
12          So one of the things that we talked about 
13      and want to have the Applicant consider is, 
14      transforming that thoroughfare into a one way, 
15      possibly a southbound one way vehicle.  And, by 
16      doing that, you would gain the footprint of 
17      that lane, and we feel that it's really 
18      important to then take that and hopefully put 
19      it adjacent to the Mixed-Use building, so that 
20      you're not walking on a narrow sidewalk, next 
21      to a, you know, ten-story plus building, but 
22      rather that you have a much broader, much more 
23      generous, much more shaded condition, 
24      pedestrian friendly condition, next to the 
25      building itself.  
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1          On the Staff report, which we by and large 
2      really have gone through and are consistent in 
3      our views as what's being said there, but one 
4      of the things is the inclusion of parallel 
5      parking.  And one of the ideas that we think we 
6      should spend some time looking at is, there is 
7      a term called Woonerf.  This is a term that's 
8      been adopted.  It's kind of the equivalent of a 
9      complete street.  This is a technique of 
10      creating traffic calming, low speed, often 
11      curbless shared street space, that doesn't 
12      separate pedestrian users from cars in a 
13      strictly divisive or hierarchical way.  
14          This is something that in the package, 
15      you'll see that we put some references for 
16      three, ranging from the New York Times to other 
17      resources that speak to the statistics.  To 
18      date, in the U.S., about 400 cities have 
19      adopted the Woonerf inspired or complete 
20      streets approach.  In the Netherlands, there's 
21      over 6,000 and it has resulted in about 40 
22      percent reduction in traffic accidents.  
23          The reason for that is that when you 
24      breakdown that sort of conceptual barrier 
25      between the domain of the vehicle (sic) and 
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1      domain of the car, if you slow down the 
2      vehicle, so that they have to negotiate the 
3      presence of pedestrians, suddenly you have a 
4      living street.  Woonerf is a Dutch term for a 
5      living yard.  It's actually creating an 
6      environment that's much more democratic in the 
7      way that pedestrians interact with vehicles.  
8          So we feel that, really, looking at that 
9      drive adjacent to the building, between the 
10      Metro and the building, this is an opportunity 
11      to really create an excellent paradigm for the 
12      rest of the development with the Underline.  
13          We think that this project is really 
14      significant, because it really is substantial 
15      in its scale and its visibility, and for that 
16      reason, doing things that are innovative and 
17      that put the pedestrian and the cyclist, you 
18      know, as a first priority, that's really what 
19      will allow the entire Underline project to 
20      really be greater than the sum of its part.  So 
21      we see this as a great example, possibly, of 
22      what could be done elsewhere.  
23          The traffic conflicts with vehicular 
24      crossing and curbcuts across the Underline, 
25      this is really a very important design aspect 
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1      that we want to look at, because the beauty of 
2      the Underline, potentially, is that you have 
3      this continuous, safe route for pedestrians and 
4      cyclists, that give people the motivation to 
5      use it all of the time.  It's a public space 
6      that will be open day and night.  
7          So at any moment that you have a 
8      perpendicular crossing or a curbcut on that 
9      Underline, on that flow, really is problematic.  
10      So anything that can be done to minimize or 
11      entirely remove those cuts should be looked at 
12      very closely.  
13          Finally, and we understand this is a 
14      massive project, which has very practical needs 
15      of loading and just the in and out of that, so 
16      we wanted to make sure that as part of this 
17      process, that we look at ways to visually and 
18      acoustically screen those loading zones, so 
19      that it doesn't detract from the experience of 
20      this great new green space that we're about to 
21      create.
22          I think that goes through -- the 
23      majority of the remainder of the comments are 
24      all considered to be consistent with our goals 
25      and our vision, and, anyway, we're really 
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1      excited about the possibility of getting this 
2      done and done in a very innovative and positive 
3      way.  So thank you for the opportunity.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you. 
5          THE SECRETARY:  No more speakers.  
6          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No more speakers, okay.  
7          Mr. Bass, anything to rebutt?  
8          MR. BASS:  We have a few comments that we'd 
9      like to rebutt.  I'm going to ask my co-counsel 
10      and Mr. Hernandez to do so, since they relate 
11      to the parking.  
12          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Good evening, Mr. Chair, 
13      Members of the Board, Mario Garcia-Serra, with 
14      offices at 600 Brickell Avenue, as Jeff 
15      mentioned, co-counsel with him for the Land Use 
16      and Zoning representation of this project.  
17          The issues that Mr. Richter brought up, in 
18      particular, I've been working with both, the 
19      client and the business owners in the area 
20      along Ponce on them, and the ones that he 
21      mentioned were traffic and parking.  
22          On traffic, I think it's very telling that 
23      in the last eight years we've had two different 
24      projects proposed for this property.  One was, 
25      what can be done as-of-right, essentially, 
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1      commercially, which was the previous Gables 
2      Station project Mr. Berkowitz was referring to, 
3      and now we have this new Gables Station 2.0 
4      version, which is a Mixed-Use project.  
5          And as has been mentioned already, the 
6      traffic generated by the Mixed-Use version of 
7      the project is 50 percent less than what was 
8      generated by the commercial, retail proposal 
9      that was previously approved.  
10          And so where do we see the benefits of 
11      that?  We see the benefits of that in the fact 
12      that there is a traffic signal that was  
13      previously going to be required for the 
14      entrance from Ponce, which is no longer there.  
15      That means less -- no loss of any onstreet 
16      parking along Ponce de Leon Boulevard, which 
17      then takes us to the second issue of parking.  
18          And it's very important, I think, to 
19      clarify what the exhibit on the Site Plan is 
20      dealing with, with regards -- or showing with 
21      regards to parking in that area.  
22          Number One, onstreet parking is going to 
23      remain as it is right now, generally, both, in 
24      number and in location.  Number Two, parking 
25      within the area of the municipal parking lots 
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1      that exist right now is indicated there in a 
2      lighter shade of green than the rest of the 
3      green that's on there.  And why is that?  It's 
4      for two reasons.  Number One, when we met with 
5      Mr. Richter and some of his neighbors there, 
6      the small business owners, they emphasized to 
7      us the importance of keeping the parking there, 
8      but actually wanted to see if in a different 
9      location than what is indicated on that plan.  
10          So what they want is parking that is closer 
11      to where their businesses are, immediately in 
12      front of their businesses.  You may have 
13      noticed the comments from the gentleman 
14      representing the Underline.  The Underline is 
15      sort of looking in the other direction and 
16      saying, you know what, we prefer to see as 
17      little parking as possible in that area, so as 
18      to maximize the green area.  
19          And so what do we have?  We have a 
20      situation, sort of, where we're being pulled in 
21      two different directions, by two different 
22      interested parties.  We ultimately want to 
23      resolve it and try to do right by both, but 
24      that's why we're showing flexibility in the 
25      location of the parking and why it's shown in a 
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1      different shade of green there, both to 
2      emphasize, we'll make it a greener area, Number 
3      One, but we're also going to be relocating some 
4      of that parking, but trying to satisfy all of 
5      the parties involved.  
6          Jorge, if you'd like to -- 
7          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Just one last comment, and 
8      I would like to show you, Dr. Richer, later, 
9      the drawing.  Essentially, it's not going to be 
10      an asphalt parking lot with yellow stripes.  
11      That's a thing of the past.  
12          The reason the light green tone was placed 
13      there is, we're going to be doing research to 
14      look at really green eco-friendly parking, that 
15      is permeable, and really it's cutting edge, so 
16      it matches the thinking of the Underline, but 
17      satisfies the needs of the businesses.  
18          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  And on a third point, 
19      we've also discussed with Mr. Richter and some 
20      of his neighbors the possibility of actually 
21      locating some of their employee parking in our 
22      garage, so as to be able to help accommodate 
23      their parking needs.  
24          Thank you.
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
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1          MR. BASS:  Mr. Chair, just very briefly, in 
2      close, I just want to pick up on one comment 
3      that the Planning Director made.  And the 
4      Planning Director formulated his support for 
5      120 feet based on the context of prior 
6      approvals at that height in other portions 
7      around the City in the North Industrial Area.  
8          We would submit to you that every property 
9      is different and our property is locationally 
10      very different from those properties, due to 
11      our location on US-1 and our adjacency to the 
12      Underline.  So 120 feet may have very well been 
13      a suitable height at those other locations, but 
14      we maintain, equally, that the heights that we 
15      seek are suitable here.  
16          Thank you again for seeing us, and, please, 
17      we would urge your support to move us to 
18      Commission.  It's vitally important that we get 
19      there.  And thank you again. 
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
21          Mr. Bass, a quick question.  You started 
22      your presentation by saying, staff approves the 
23      application, but I think it's clear Staff is 
24      not approving it at the proposed 180 -- well, 
25      160 habitable, goes up to 180 in places, so 
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1      whatever -- and it's like 148, 158.  
2          MR. BASS:  Staff has recommended approval 
3      subject to conditions, and we have a difference 
4      of opinion with respect to height in the Staff 
5      conditions, but you're perfectly capable of 
6      moving it forward pursuant to Staff's 
7      recommendation at that condition. 
8          As Mr. Trias said, the ultimate height 
9      decision there is a policy decision that we 
10      believe that the Commission is perfectly 
11      capable of making, but, yes, we -- 
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I just want to make 
13      sure we're on the same page.  
14          MR. BASS:  Yeah.  
15          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  You said, Staff 
16      approves it.  To me, that was approval at 120, 
17      but obviously the Applicant is not agreeing to 
18      the 120 at this point, if that's being -- that 
19      being what I read as being Staff's 
20      recommendation. 
21          MR. BASS:  Correct.  They have recommended 
22      approval subject to their condition.  Their 
23      condition is that the height be 120. 
24          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
25          MR. COLLER:  Mr. Chairman, this is kind of 
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1      a side issue, but an issue that Mr. Berkowitz 
2      brought up with regard to the settlement of the 
3      City on the transmission lines.  I was trying 
4      to get an indication from Craig on the nature 
5      of that settlement.
6          It is far more complex than stated.  I 
7      don't want to go through everything that fit on 
8      my iPhone screen on the explanation, but it is 
9      a lot more than that.  The City apparently gets 
10      the benefit of any appellate decision and there 
11      was a recent appellate decision, and the City 
12      was in a different position, because of an 
13      existing transmission line, but I didn't want 
14      it to go unstated that the settlement was as 
15      simple as stated.  It's much more complex.  
16          I'm sorry that Craig Leen is not here to 
17      explain it, but it's a lot more involved than 
18      what is stated.  So I just wanted to advise the 
19      -- 
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
21          And as Maria just mentioned, I think I 
22      remember reading there was a ruling recently 
23      that -- 
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  In favor of the cities.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  In favor of the 
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1      municipalities.  
2          MR. COLLER:  Which the City gets the 
3      benefit of -- 
4          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  
5          MR. COLLER:  -- in the City Attorney's opinion.  
6          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
7          All right.  I will close the public hearing 
8      and open it up for discussion and questions 
9      from the Board.  
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  I have questions.  
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  Maria.  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Ramon, can I ask you a few 
13      questions?  
14          How high is the building across, on the 
15      other side of Ponce?  
16          MR. TRIAS:  Gables Ponce?  
17          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.  
18          MR. TRIAS:  That's 100 feet -- 99 feet to 
19      the top of the habitable -- 
20          MS. MENENDEZ:  99 feet?  
21          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  Yeah.  
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  To the top?  
23          MR. TRIAS:  To the -- 
24          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think it's 77 
25      habitable, isn't it?  
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1          MR. TRIAS:  Habitable is 99 feet.  
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  Habitable is 99 feet, plus 
3      how much?  
4          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, plus -- I think it's a 
5      maximum of 25.  I'm not a hundred percent sure 
6      of the -- 
7          MS. MENENDEZ:  Can we find out, because -- 
8          MR. TRIAS:  Sure.  We can find out at some 
9      point.  
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Well, that's an 
11      important concept for me tonight.  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah, we'd like to know -- 
13          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, but what's allowed is 25 
14      feet extra.  
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  I'm sorry?  
16          MR. TRIAS:  25 feet additional is allowed.  
17          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  The question is, is 
18      it 99?  So you're sure.  If you're sure, that's 
19      great, but if you're not, I'd like to get an 
20      answer, if possible, of course.  
21          Did you want to say something, Mario? 
22          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Yeah.  Having 
23      represented those projects, Gables Ponce 1 and 
24      2, I can tell you that it's 100 feet of 
25      habitable height, at its maximum point.  

Page 79
1          MS. MENENDEZ:  A hundred feet?  
2          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  There is a corner of the 
3      property that is at 77 feet, sort of where the 
4      pool deck area is, but the maximum height of 
5      Gables 1 and 2, habitable, is 100 feet.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  And then another 25, you're 
7      saying?  
8          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  15.  I'm pretty sure 
9      it's 15.  
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  Another 15?  So it's 115?  
11          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Architectural features. 
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Thank you.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thank you.  
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  I don't know if I could see 
15      the aerials that showed the linear park and the 
16      buildings.  
17          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The perspectives?  
18          MS. MENENDEZ:  The one that you had that 
19      you brought together.  
20          My question really is regarding the green 
21      space -- the percentage of green space, are we 
22      counting, I would imagine, the linear part as a 
23      green space, and I'm having a problem, and I 
24      know we had a discussion about this in the 
25      other project that was north of this site, all 
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1      of this hardscape that's going down as 
2      sidewalks, what material is that?  Is that like 
3      a green friendly material, similar to what you 
4      have projected for the parking area?  
5          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yeah.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  Because that's a lot of 
7      hardscape, if it's hardscape.  
8          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Is it this aerial?  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  No.  Actually, it was one 
10      you had that was together.  It was an aerial, 
11      not a picture.  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It wasn't any of these?  
13      They were plans.  
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah, it was -- 
15          MR. HERNANDEZ:  This one?  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Well, it was one that had an 
17      aerial and you had it connected and you had it 
18      nicely shown -- 
19          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Oh, the two large boards. 
20          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah.  
21          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  
22          MS. MENENDEZ:  Because that shows the 
23      proposed park.  
24          So my question is, you talked about the 
25      percentage.  I guess this question is for the 
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1      architect.  You talked about the percentages of 
2      green area, but are we really focused on the 
3      park itself, because I don't see a lot of green 
4      on the site itself?  
5          MR. HERNANDEZ:  So the percentages I gave 
6      were for public open space, and I'll round up 
7      or down, there is 87,000 square feet, which is 
8      two acres, of public open space on this site.
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  On the site, not 
10      including -- 
11          MR. HERNANDEZ:  No, just on our site.  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
13          MR. HERNANDEZ:  So it's a 4.45 acre site, 
14      and two acres of it is public open space.  Some 
15      of that open space is planted with plant 
16      material and some of it has hardscape.  We are 
17      going to go for LEED Silver, so we are 
18      completely into researching and looking at 
19      permeable green pavement, but that gives -- I 
20      hope that answers the question.  
21          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.  
22          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  Thank you.  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  I'd like to see the ingress 
24      and egress of the site and an explanation of 
25      how you get into the parking garages.  
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1          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'm sorry to keep coming up 
2      with the same board, but -- 
3          MR. COLLER:  Could you use the mobile mike 
4      when you speak?  
5          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yeah, I apologize.  
6          Okay.  Thank you.  
7          MS. MENENDEZ:  So I see the dedicated lane 
8      towards the north of the building.  
9          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes. 
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  How do you get into that 
11      dedicated lane?  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  So if you're traveling 
13      southbound on US-1, then this is the dedicated 
14      deceleration lane here.  
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
16          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'll give the straight -- 
17      there you go.  Sorry.  
18          That's the deceleration lane there.  
19      There's an entry here, and you'll enter here.  
20      This is the primary ramp.  There is a parking 
21      structure under each of these two buildings, 
22      with an efficiency, because you only need to 
23      provide one ramp for the entire plate.  
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  So that's the only ramp?  
25          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes, this is the only ramp 
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1      for the entire parking structure, which bridges 
2      across these two buildings.  
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  Under?  You're saying it 
4      goes -- 
5          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Up.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  It goes up?  
7          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It goes up.  There's no 
8      below grade parking.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  Oh, okay.  All right.  I 
10      misunderstood.  
11          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes, there's no below grade 
12      parking.  
13          Then, just to answer the other question of 
14      which are the other ways to get into that 
15      space, one can take a right and go around the 
16      oval -- the Ponce oval, with the fountain, come 
17      into Gables Station Drive, and take a left into 
18      that same entry point.  Or one can bypass the 
19      site and take a right onto Gables Station 
20      Drive, and take a right into that ramp.  Or one 
21      can use Ponce to come and cut through the park.  
22      This is a pre-approved -- Dade County 
23      pre-approved cut through the park, that we have 
24      the approvals standing from the previously 
25      approved project that Mr. Berkowitz referred 
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1      to.  
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  But is that important, 
3      because that's what I was getting at?  Is that 
4      particular one important to get to site, if you 
5      have all of the other opportunities?  
6          MR. HERNANDEZ:  For a person who loves to 
7      color their drawings green, I would say, no, 
8      but the traffic engineering that Plummer's 
9      office did is saying it's vitally important to 
10      have many ways for the cars to disperse.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  But you have a couple of 
12      ways -- 
13          MR. HERNANDEZ:  And they're here.  They're 
14      here.  So maybe -- that's beyond my expertise, 
15      certainly beyond my pay scale.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Well, if they'd like to come 
17      up -- 
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  My concern about that 
20      particular cut is, Ponce, in the peak hours, is 
21      really tough to get through and you have an 
22      over 900 parking garage -- or 900 space parking 
23      garage, and to introduce people to go on Ponce 
24      to enter the site -- 
25          MR. BASS:  I would say, if you would like 
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1      to make that a condition of this Board, that we 
2      close that, we would certainly look at it that 
3      way, as a condition.  
4          MS. MENENDEZ:  Well, would it work, I guess 
5      is the question to the engineers?  
6          MR. PEREZ:  They don't know yet, because 
7      the traffic report is still being reviewed.  
8          MS. MENENDEZ:  No, there is one here.  
9      There is one inside here.  
10          MR. PEREZ:  But it says here that it's 
11      still being reviewed by Staff.  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Oh, Staff, okay. 
13          MR. PEREZ:  So I don't know.  I mean, to 
14      close that off, what recommendation, I'm not 
15      sure -- 
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  I mean, I don't know 
17      if you want to contribute anything to what's 
18      been said, but my concern, though, is:  A lot 
19      of people are going to take that entrance and 
20      exit, because a lot will be coming through that 
21      Ponce area, and there's going to be quite a jam 
22      in that area.  
23          Come on up.
24          MR. ESPINOSA:  Juan Espinosa, with David 
25      Plummer and Associates, 1750 Ponce de Leon.  
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1          We expect the majority of the traffic -- 
2          MR. COLLER:  Could you slow down, because 
3      they can't get you at that speed?  
4          MR. ESPINOSA:  I'm sorry.  We expect the 
5      majority of the traffic to come through US-1.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  US-1 from east to west?  
7          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yeah, this being 
8      residential.  I mean, now we're talking about a 
9      mostly residential development.  So the plan 
10      before was mostly commercial.  So a lot of the 
11      traffic, we expected it coming from Ponce.  Now 
12      we expect a lot of traffic, people coming, in 
13      the afternoon, from Downtown, people working in 
14      Downtown, coming on US-1, making the right 
15      turn, and then exiting to go back to Downtown.  
16      That's the majority.  
17          MS. MENENDEZ:  How are they going to exit 
18      to go back?  How is it going to be in the 
19      morning, I guess?  
20          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'll hold it for you.  
21          MR. COLLER:  Do you want to pick up the 
22      other mike?  It might be easier for you.
23          MR. ESPINOSA:  They can use -- they can 
24      exit here and make a right, to the second here, 
25      and make a right here, and then a left out into 
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1      US-1.  
2          So, I mean, we like this entrance here to 
3      distribute traffic, but it's not necessary.  
4          MS. MENENDEZ:  It's not necessary?  
5          MR. ESPINOSA:  No.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Can I interject?  
8          MS. MENENDEZ:  Sure.  
9          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I mean, I think having 
10      that access into Ponce -- don't go anywhere, 
11      sorry -- that's good, to disperse it.  If I'm 
12      coming northbound on US-1, how can I get into 
13      that property?  
14          MR. ESPINOSA:  You have two options.  You 
15      can make a left here, go around the circle, and 
16      then make a right here.  Or if you come through 
17      Le Jeune, you can come here.  There's an 
18      entrance here.  So you can come from Grand 
19      Avenue, if you're going from the Grove, and 
20      then make a right in and into the parking 
21      garage.  
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So if you're coming 
23      from the south, you have to know to either go 
24      north on Le Jeune or you've got to go through 
25      the roundabout on Ponce at Merrick?  
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1          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yeah.  I mean, the only 
2      movement that doesn't require you coming down 
3      on Le Jeune, because you don't have access, 
4      then you will have to take Ponce.  A quick 
5      right and a quick right in here.  
6          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right.  So I'm 
7      struggling with the traffic flow, because I'm 
8      in that area constantly, and I see both, in the 
9      morning and in the p.m., how the traffic piles 
10      up at the circle.  I mean, it's without fail, 
11      traffic is backing up sometimes into the 
12      circle, but if not into the circle, awfully 
13      close to it, and that's morning and afternoon.  
14          So I have difficulty seeing how, if 
15      somebody wanted to leave the project, go 
16      northerly to Ponce, take a right onto Ponce and 
17      then trying to get onto US-1 and go north, it's 
18      going to be a very difficult process. 
19          Correct.  
20          MR. ESPINOSA:  This right here?  
21          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yeah.  It can be a very 
22      difficult process to do that.  
23          Likewise, that five-point intersection at 
24      Grand, Blue, Le Jeune, Ponce is difficult as it 
25      sits today.  And while it may not impact this 
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1      project, whether it's a combination of the City 
2      or FDOT, they've done a great job of kind of 
3      boxing people in, because if you're on Le 
4      Jeune, you can't go left to go south on US-1, 
5      you can't go left to go south on Ponce, you 
6      can't go left to go westbound on Blue, so it 
7      creates for some people doing some circuitous 
8      movements in order to get in the direction they 
9      want to go.  
10          I'm also curious to see -- I didn't see it 
11      in the plans, and I think the confusion 
12      continues, on Grand Avenue, as you approach 
13      US-1, heading eastbound towards the Grove, 
14      there used to be a left turn only lane and then 
15      a through lane.  
16          Through time and through lack of attention 
17      or maintenance, the left turn arrow has 
18      disappeared, and I was very surprised to see, 
19      in these plans, that that left turn lane is 
20      shown as a left turn and a through lane.  Now, 
21      it may have been changed.  I don't think it 
22      was, because if you sit in the through lane, 
23      which is the right-hand lane, heading 
24      eastbound, it's clear how it lines up in front 
25      of the elementary school.  
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1          So I think I have -- it looks like, if you 
2      come out of the project onto Grand, you're 
3      supposedly, although I think your island could 
4      be very defined, it looks like the intent is to 
5      make the turning movement going west on Grand?  
6          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yeah, it will be a right 
7      turn out.  
8          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right turn only?  
9          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yes. 
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  We know how that 
11      rarely works well, but I think there's going to 
12      be a lot of issues on Grand -- there's issues 
13      today -- and be extremely exacerbated with some 
14      of the traffic.  
15          And I understand, obviously, the traffic 
16      generation may be reduced by this as to what 
17      could go as a matter of right, which is always 
18      nice, but I think we need to look harder at -- 
19      and I don't know what else could be done, but I 
20      think we need to look harder at what else could 
21      be done in order to alleviate some of the 
22      traffic on the north, the west, and the south 
23      side.  
24          Can you come out of the project onto US-1 
25      and go southbound?  
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1          MR. ESPINOSA:  Can you, what? 
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Can you come out of the 
3      project and go southbound on US-1?  
4          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yes.  
5          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.
6          MR. ESPINOSA:  Absolutely.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  All right.  
8          MS. MENENDEZ:  Why don't you consider, on 
9      Ponce and US-1, to create a more -- you know, 
10      encroaching a little onto the site and create a 
11      right-hand only through and then a turn, so you 
12      don't have that conflict that Jeff just 
13      described?  Is that proposed?  I didn't see it.  
14          MR. ESPINOSA:  No.  I just want to see 
15      what's the existing conditions in there.  
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Is anybody from the 
17      City here, do we know who is responsible for 
18      maintaining -- 
19          MR. ESPINOSA:  That one has already double 
20      right turn lanes.  
21          MS. MENENDEZ:  You have two double right 
22      turn lanes proposed?  
23          MR. ESPINOSA:  No, it's already in there.  
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  That's there already?  
25          MR. ESPINOSA:  Uh-huh. 
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1          MS. MENENDEZ:  Really?  
2          MR. ESPINOSA:  Yeah.  
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  I don't remember two double 
4      -- I know that there's one and then there's one 
5      that's a combination.  
6          MR. ESPINOSA:  There's a combination -- 
7      left -- there's exclusive left, left through 
8      and two rights.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  Really?  
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Ponce and US-1?  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah.  
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yeah.  
13          MS. MENENDEZ:  There's two rights?  
14          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Two rights.  You've got 
15      a left -- 
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Two rights?  
17          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yes. 
18          MS. MENENDEZ:  One through?  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  One left and through 
20      and then one left only.  
21          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  All right.  
22          MS. MENENDEZ:  So there's four 
23      opportunities at that -- 
24          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  There are, but you get 
25      a bottleneck up at the circle, because three of 
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1      those lanes -- 
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  There's a bottleneck 
3      somewhere, yeah -- they have to merge in -- 
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  One lane, the left lane 
5      going through the circle, opens to three lanes.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  Got it.  Okay.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  And because of that, 
8      you get a bottleneck created right there.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Do we know who 
11      maintains Grand Avenue at US-1?  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Grand Avenue at US-1?  
13      That's City.  City.
14          MR. TRIAS:  The US-1 right-of-way is 
15      maintained by DOT and Grand Avenue is by the 
16      County.  
17          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Grand is by the County?  
18          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  And then Ponce de Leon 
19      is a City street.  
20          MS. MENENDEZ:  But the City maintains US-1.  
21      I don't know if it's paid or not, but because 
22      of the landscaping, they took over -- 
23          MR. TRIAS:  The landscape, yes.  
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay. 
25          MR. TRIAS:  The traffic is a different 
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1      story.  
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Thanks.  
4          You're good?  
5          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah.  
6          MR. PEREZ:  I have a few questions.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay. 
8          MR. PEREZ:  So to address the parking 
9      concerns of some of the -- 
10          MR. WU:  Please speak into the mike. 
11          MR. PEREZ:  Oh, I'm sorry.  
12          To address some of the concerns of the 
13      parking issues addressed by the commercial 
14      neighbors a little while ago, out of the 969 
15      spaces that are projected to be on-site, I 
16      understand I heard earlier that some of those 
17      spaces will be earmarked for these neighbors.  
18          Do we have an idea how many of those spaces 
19      will be for the neighbors, and if so or out of 
20      those, how many spaces are going to be 
21      managed -- are they reserved?  Are you guys 
22      going to charge these guys for spaces?  How is 
23      that going to be addressed?  
24          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  In the conversations 
25      that we've had with the neighbors, it seems 
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1      like their need for employee parking is 
2      somewhere around 20 spaces.  So the idea would 
3      be to try to find a way to program those 20 
4      spaces within our parking garage.  
5          We haven't made any sort of formal 
6      agreement or commitment yet, but that's what's 
7      been discussed.  
8          MR. PEREZ:  And those are solely for like 
9      kind of the storefront or commercial buildings 
10      along Ponce -- 
11          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Correct.  
12          MR. PEREZ:  -- that aren't part of Gables 
13      Residential?  
14          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Correct.  
15          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  And are those going to 
16      be reserved specifically for these?  Are they 
17      going to be free of charge?  Are they going to 
18      be paid per month?  I just want a better 
19      understanding, to make sure that their concerns 
20      are being addressed.  
21          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  We haven't gotten to the 
22      details yet, as far as hours of operation, 
23      because there could be times -- if it's going 
24      to be employee parking, in the evenings, for 
25      example, it might not be used and we would want 
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1      to utilize them as part of the overall parking 
2      pool, but the idea is to try to make them work 
3      for the businessowners, both from a functional 
4      perspective, as to how often and for how long 
5      they can be using them, and also at no charge 
6      or minimum charge.  
7          MR. PEREZ:  And then the off-site 
8      improvements, as it relates to the park, et 
9      cetera, which I think is very nice, what's the 
10      time frame, as far as phasing of the entire 
11      project?  Is this work going to be done in 
12      tandem with the vertical construction of the 
13      project?  Is it front-ended?  I mean, just walk 
14      me through that.  
15          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It's parallel.  It's 
16      parallel with the construction.  
17          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  And, obviously, the time 
19      sensitivity is to coordinate with the Underline 
20      and with the other municipalities.  
21          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  And who ultimately 
22      maintains those parks?  
23          MR. HERNANDEZ:  They will not -- the park 
24      and the Underline will not be maintained by 
25      NPI.  
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1          MR. PEREZ:  Will not?  
2          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It will be paid for, but 
3      not maintained by NPI.  
4          MR. PEREZ:  Okay. 
5          MS. MENENDEZ:  Who will maintain it? 
6          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, the Underline has its 
7      own maintenance program, and the park, which is 
8      given over to the City, will be maintained by 
9      the City or the County.  They are not being 
10      maintained by NPI.  
11          MR. PEREZ:  So the County or the City 
12      maintains the parks?  
13          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It's currently County 
14      lands, with a lease to the City.  So it's a 
15      tough coordination project, because it 
16      coordinates the Underline, which is County and 
17      is a non-profit City leased parcels, and then 
18      the County.  
19          MR. BASS:  Just briefly.  We're going to 
20      have to negotiate a multi-agency agreement on 
21      that, and maintenance, obviously, will be 
22      included in that.  
23          MR. PEREZ:  All right.  So then the 
24      off-site improvement bond that's being 
25      recommended by the Staff, that bond ultimately 
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1      is put up with the County, not the City, right?  
2          MR. TRIAS:  The attorney explained that 
3      we're still negotiating this issue.  What I can 
4      say to you is this, I met with the County 
5      Officials that are working on the Underline, 
6      and they have an Advisory Committee, Professor 
7      Rovira is here, and the issue is that many of 
8      these things, from my perspective, are not 
9      worked out yet in that level of detail.  It's 
10      still a conversation.  And we have to make -- 
11      or you could make the recommendations that you 
12      think are best.  
13          The assumption here is that prior to the 
14      CO, the Applicant will pay and make happen the 
15      construction of the landscape on the Underline.  
16      That is the contribution that they're 
17      committing to.  
18          The future maintenance, the future 
19      management of the Underline, that will be done 
20      by probably some County agency, and I say that, 
21      because the right-of-way is currently managed 
22      by the County, by the Transportation Department 
23      of the County.  
24          But that has not been resolved.  I also 
25      have to make that clear.  From what I know 
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1      about the project, those issues are not 
2      resolved yet.  
3          MR. PEREZ:  So just for clarity, by the 
4      time this goes to Commission, are those items 
5      going to be resolved or ultimately that's going 
6      to be addressed when the restrictive covenant 
7      is entered into?  
8          MR. TRIAS:  I think it will take longer 
9      than the approval at the Commission or the 
10      consideration of the Commission.  I think.
11          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  
12          All right.  And then my last question, now 
13      that I have you up here, so just to make sure 
14      that I'm reading your recommendation correctly, 
15      what you're recommending is a maximum height 
16      of -- or what Staff is recommending is a 
17      maximum height of 120 for the entire project?  
18          MR. TRIAS:  For the habitable height, the 
19      maximum area at the very top of the top floor, 
20      not for the decorative elements.  And the 
21      reason for that is that, in the past, that has 
22      been the policy direction that we have received 
23      from that area, by you and the City Commission.  
24      120 was, as the attorney explained, appropriate 
25      for neighboring areas.  
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1          Now, every project is different, and I 
2      agree with them, that you should look at it in 
3      detail in some merits, and the request that 
4      they're making is different.  So we recommend 
5      approval, true, with conditions, and one of 
6      them is a major policy discussion, which is the 
7      maximum height.  
8          If you want to have that discussion, that 
9      would be appropriate, and, at this point, like 
10      I said, you know, Staff is comfortable with 
11      continuing the current policy direction.  And 
12      if you want to propose something different, 
13      this is certainly the opportunity to do that.  
14          MR. PEREZ:  So, I mean, the last two 
15      projects of this intensity that were brought 
16      before us, that I could remember, was 
17      Mediterranean Village and Paseo.  
18          Can you remind me what the height approved 
19      at Mediterranean Village was?  
20          MR. TRIAS:  Mediterranean Village was a 
21      High-Rise Land Use and that allowed 189 feet 
22      for most of the buildings.  Now, the hotel was 
23      allowed to have additional height.  I believe 
24      it was 208 feet.  
25          MR. PEREZ:  208 or 280?  
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1          MR. TRIAS:  208.  Was that the right -- do 
2      you remember?  18?  
3          I'm sorry, 218.  
4          And I'm sorry I don't have all of this 
5      memorized at that level of detail, but it's 
6      218.  
7          MR. PEREZ:  No, I'm sorry I asked you -- 
8          MR. TRIAS:  But the main issue is this, in 
9      terms of concept, in the City you can do up to 
10      190 feet, more or less; 190 feet with a 
11      High-Rise Land Use.  That's what I would use as 
12      a benchmark, in terms of thinking of the 
13      tallest buildings that you can do.  
14          So what they're requesting is less.  I 
15      mean, they're requesting 160 as the tallest 
16      building.  So if it was a request for a 
17      High-Rise Land Use, that request, High-Rise, 
18      would allow more than the 160 that they're 
19      proposing.  
20          So that's the context of the discussion, 
21      and that's the upper range, and then the range 
22      that has been approved recently is 120.  
23          The Paseo -- probably Professor Hernandez 
24      may remember exactly the heights that were 
25      finally approved. 
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1          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yeah.  By the usage of the 
2      PAD, as you might remember, there was a very 
3      active dialog with the Commission, and they 
4      relaxed certain setbacks, but -- to allow us to 
5      arrive at a max height of 126 for the hotel.  
6          MR. TRIAS:  And the other buildings?  
7          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The apartment building was 
8      110, 112.  I can't remember.  
9          MR. TRIAS:  I think it was 112.  
10          MR. HERNANDEZ:  112.  
11          MR. TRIAS:  It was 112.  So we're talking 
12      about 112, 120 is reasonably within the recent 
13      discussion.  
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  But let me ask you 
15      something, Ramon.  In your Staff Report, you 
16      have here, on Page 7, currently permitted is 99 
17      feet -- 
18          MR. TRIAS:  Right.  
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  -- with Med bonuses.  
20          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
21          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  So where did this 120 
22      come into effect?  
23          MR. TRIAS:  That 120 is for the -- there 
24      are two Mixed-Use Districts, okay.  If you'll 
25      remember, we originally proposed the 120 for 

Page 103
1      both Mixed-Use Districts, and you decided to 
2      recommend it only for one of them, which is the 
3      one that is right next to this other Mixed-Use 
4      District.  
5          So what happened is that in that Mixed-Use 
6      District, you can do 120 and 10 stories.  The 
7      South and the North is the name of the two 
8      districts.  
9          So the North District, the actual -- the 
10      change was to allow 120.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  And the South was to remain 
12      at 99?  Is that it?  
13          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  That was your 
14      recommendation and the Commission agreed with 
15      that.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  And so -- okay.  So this 
17      says 99, and I'm trying to figure out, your 120 
18      is -- 
19          MR. TRIAS:  As I said, in the district that 
20      is right adjacent to this one, it's 120.  I'm 
21      speaking, in general terms, in the area.  
22      Currently, 120 is not allowed in this parcel, 
23      okay.  It's allowed in the parcel immediately 
24      north of this district.  
25          MS. MENENDEZ:  And this is because of the 
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1      proximity, perhaps, to residential across or 
2      what is the reasoning behind this area being 
3      lower than the other area?  Remind me.  
4          MR. TRIAS:  That was a policy choice that 
5      you made, and Staff had recommended changing it 
6      to 120 on both districts, to be consistent, and 
7      I think that the issue was that there were no 
8      projects being proposed for the South District, 
9      so there was no real request at the time.  The 
10      request had to do with projects on the North 
11      District.  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  To go back to touch on 
14      Albert's question about the Underline, in the 
15      Staff Report and the presentation tonight, it 
16      mentioned doing the Underline prior to the 
17      issuance of the first building permit.  
18          MR. TRIAS:  Right.  And that's one of the 
19      key conditions that we need to think about, in 
20      the context that the Underline is an idea, an 
21      idea that still doesn't have a very clear 
22      implementation path, as we have described.  So 
23      the timing and the conditions have to be done 
24      in such a way that it's realistic.  
25          I think the intent, everybody's intent, is 
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1      to get this done, and we still need to figure 
2      it out.  So we're trying to do it as fast as we 
3      can.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So whether it's prior 
5      to building permit or concurrent with the 
6      construction or, I've also seen prior to final 
7      CO, that's all influx?  
8          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  Those are key components 
9      of the recommendation, in terms of timing.  And 
10      I think that there are three basic -- at least 
11      there's the TCO and the CO, generally those are 
12      the benchmarks that we use.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  
14          MR. TRIAS:  And the final CO, what happens 
15      is that, that may take a long time.  A project 
16      may be built in phases, it may be -- so those 
17      are issues that are important, to have a very 
18      clear idea of what the policy is.  
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  Can you -- I'm sorry -- 
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Albert, did you have 
21      more?  
22          MR. PEREZ:  I just have one question, which 
23      relates to traffic.  What's the width -- I 
24      mean, that private road that's being proposed, 
25      what's the width of that?  
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1          MR. TRIAS:  It's a two-lane street.  I 
2      don't remember the dimension exactly.  
3          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It's 23 feet.  
4          MR. PEREZ:  So you're proposing loading, 
5      obviously, from a turning radius, with delivery 
6      trucks and -- 
7          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  We've checked that 
8      out with Tim Plummer's Office -- 
9          MR. PEREZ:  And that's fine?  
10          MR. HERNANDEZ:  And it works.  
11          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Because there are two sizes 
13      of trucks, and two of the three commercial 
14      spaces are envisioned as having the 50-foot 
15      trucks.  One of them has a deeper truck.  Those 
16      are the ones that are angled.  
17          MR. PEREZ:  Even with a two -- it's two 
18      lanes, right, each way?  
19          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It's a two-lane.  
20          MR. PEREZ:  And even with two lanes, it 
21      still passes radius?  
22          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It's backing up into the 
23      space.  
24          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  
25          MR. HERNANDEZ:  They bypass the space and 
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1      back into it.  
2          MR. TRIAS:  And having said that, what 
3      Professor Rovira mentioned, in terms of the 
4      design of that road and making it one lane and 
5      so on, is also being discussed.  However, if 
6      that were to happens, we need to accommodate 
7      the turning radius of those other trucks.  
8          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Of the trucks, yes.  
9          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  The dedicated lane, is that 
11      going to be given to the City or is that an 
12      internal road?  I mean, I would imagine it will 
13      become part of the right-of-way or an easement.  
14          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  It's actually already 
15      part of the right-of-way.  What we refer to as 
16      Gables Station Drive, that road that goes the 
17      entire length of the site, is actually going to 
18      be an easement over County right-of-way, where 
19      the Metrorail right-of-way is.  
20          MS. MENENDEZ:  No, I'm referring to the one 
21      on South Dixie Highway, the dedicated lane -- 
22          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Okay.  Yeah, that's also 
23      going to be dedicated FDOT, the deceleration 
24      lane.  
25          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  Will that be part of 
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1      the right-of-way at US-1 or is that -- 
2          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Yes.  
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  That's going to be turned 
4      over to the State or the City or whoever it -- 
5          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Correct, FDOT, yeah.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Maria, do you have 
8      more?  
9          All right.  Marshall?  
10          MR. BELLIN:  Yeah.  
11          I just want to make sure that you comply 
12      with the eight percent commercial space on the 
13      ground.  I couldn't figure it, because, you 
14      know, I don't know how the retail space is 
15      broken up.  
16          I took a look at how you determined the 
17      parking, and why didn't you take advantage of 
18      the Mixed-Use parking matrix?  It seems to me 
19      like there's a lot more parking provided in 
20      this building than you really need.  I mean, 
21      you just went through and assigned the -- 
22          MR. HERNANDEZ:  We did two separate means.  
23      If there's a third way, we'd be happy to hear 
24      it, but one is the one that you approved 
25      recently, the one for one bedroom -- is this 
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1      on?  Can you hear me -- and the other one is a 
2      shared parking study, an independent 
3      third-party shared parking study, and they both 
4      convened at that point.  
5          MR. BELLIN:  But it doesn't -- 
6          MR. WU:  Well, what I suggest is, because 
7      the peak usage of these uses, the primary uses 
8      are at the same time, the hotel peak uses, 
9      where cars are in the garage, are at the same 
10      peak time uses where the residents' cars are in 
11      the garage, so there's not that much of a 
12      discount for this Mixed-Use, per se, as opposed 
13      to an office use, with a residential component.  
14          MR. BELLIN:  I'm not so sure about that.  
15      You have retail and you have residential.  And 
16      the retail operates at different times than the 
17      people who live in the building.  They go to 
18      work.
19          MR. WU:  I understand that, and I think 
20      they have taken that into consideration, the 
21      first method of analysis.  
22          MR. TRIAS:  Now, what I would say is that 
23      we still have not finished the review of the 
24      parking.  The Public Works Staff is still 
25      reviewing that, but the submittal originally 
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1      was taking advantage of the shared parking, 
2      and, then, when the parking was calculated 
3      again, based on the current changes that have 
4      been made recently, in terms of the lesser 
5      requirements for apartments, I believe that the 
6      number was lowered.  So they chose to go that 
7      way.  
8          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Right, and it was just 
9      clarified that we are now 30 cars above your 
10      new implemented system.  That's for the 
11      employees that work -- remember earlier you 
12      heard there are 20 employees -- there's a need 
13      for 20 spaces for employees that work in the 
14      current small commercial areas on Ponce?  So we 
15      have blended all of those needs in.  That's 
16      where we are now.  
17          MR. BELLIN:  Okay.  
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  
19          MR. BELLIN:  My main question is, there are 
20      no liners at all for the parking garages.  
21          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  That's correct.  
22          MR. BELLIN:  So how do you propose to 
23      shield the lights, whatever takes place in the 
24      parking garages, from the public?  
25          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yeah.  One of the -- I 
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1      don't know if you all got a chance to review 
2      the new elevations.  The scale giving element 
3      of the entire project is a sort of screen, an 
4      arcade screen, that really represents the area 
5      of the parking structure.  And when we had a 
6      discussion with the Board of Architects, we 
7      talked about them as large ventanas de cajas, 
8      which is a tropical or caribbean element that 
9      comes from the Mediterranean, from the South of 
10      Spain.  
11          So ventanas de cajas, which is a 
12      Mediterranean element, here are reinterpreted 
13      as a large scale urban gesture.  They typically 
14      have a very complicated series of beautifully, 
15      almost moorish like woven metalwork, and we're 
16      going to design those so that dampers run 
17      opposite to the field of view.  It's not 100 
18      percent detailed yet, but it's one of these 
19      architectural ideas that we're going to be 
20      revisiting with the Board of Architects, which 
21      I think is one of the more interesting parts, 
22      because that -- again, we go back, if we put 
23      the liners on the parking garage, they fall 
24      where the tracks are, if we go to the west 
25      side.  And if we go to the east side for 
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1      liners, we have retail up for 24 feet on the 
2      street.  So, really, what we're guarding 
3      against, as you say, is the view of the lights, 
4      but we're not -- there's no reason for a liner 
5      to activate the street.  The commercial goes 
6      through the whole 175 feet of depth.  
7          The real need is to screen the cars, not to 
8      line them with functions.  Liners were 
9      introduced generally, in urban areas, to 
10      activate the urban areas when the garages are 
11      on the ground floor.  There's hardly no garage 
12      -- there are no garage.  There's a ramp up, and 
13      there are no garages until the height of 24 
14      feet.  
15          MR. BELLIN:  Okay.  The original 
16      requirement for liners in the Code, how do 
17      you -- 
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, I mean, we're 
19      asking -- I just explained the techniques of 
20      it.  
21          MR. BELLIN:  No, I understand that, but if 
22      the Code says, you have a requirement for a 
23      liner -- 
24          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes, but there is no 
25      parking on the ground floor.  
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1          MR. BELLIN:  Well, but as you go up, 
2      there's a requirement for the liners.  
3          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The parking starts at 24 
4      feet.  Is there -- I don't know where Ramon is 
5      -- Ramon, is there a requirement for liners at 
6      all heights or just on the ground floor?  
7          MR. TRIAS:  Mr. Bellin, you're very 
8      familiar with the Code.  Which section are you 
9      referring to, because I don't recall that there 
10      was a requirement in the Code for liners on 
11      parking garages?  
12          MR. BELLIN:  I think it might be in the -- 
13          MR. TRIAS:  I mean, we have discussed it as 
14      an idea that we wanted to do it on the Downtown 
15      Overlay, but, as of today, that -- I don't 
16      believe that's the case.  
17          MR. BELLIN:  Okay.  
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I have some 
19      recollection, and I thought we approved 
20      something along those lines or recommended 
21      approval.  
22          MR. WU:  For Giralda, we did.  You did -- 
23      you made a recommendation for the Giralda 
24      Overlay to have front liners in front of 
25      garages.  
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1          MS. MENENDEZ:  So that was particular to 
2      that --
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Just Giralda.  
4          MR. TRIAS:  Right.  
5          MR. WU:  Right, just for Giralda. 
6          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  That discussion has taken 
7      place, but it has taken place within the very 
8      narrow focus -- 
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  Specific.  
10          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, certainly not on US-1.  
11          MR. BELLIN:  But didn't we require liners 
12      for the Mediterranean Village parking garages?  
13          MR. TRIAS:  Well, as conditions of 
14      approval, you did, and certainly -- and the 
15      Commission agreed, as a condition of approval.  
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think we need to 
17      remember, while this may front on US-1, we do 
18      have a lot of residences now, I'll say, behind 
19      this, so to the west, and, then, of course, you 
20      have -- you do have the residential district on 
21      the east, across US-1, but this also impacts 
22      the residential district on the west side of Le 
23      Jeune.  So we need to be very cognizant about 
24      the impacts on all sides. 
25          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  And the meeting that I 
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1      had this morning dealt partially with screens 
2      in those arches that actually are in front of 
3      the parking.  And that's a very important 
4      aspect of this design, and that's why the 
5      design that was delivered to you today is very 
6      different than the one that was included in the 
7      package.  
8          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Is that the packet that 
9      was at our seats tonight?  
10          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  It's this one.  
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So we haven't had a 
13      chance to analyze that.  
14          MR. TRIAS:  If you look at the drawings 
15      there, you will see that many ideas that 
16      Professor Hernandez was describing are detailed 
17      very nicely.  
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Also, just to answer, the 
19      hotel building, which is the one that faces 
20      southwest, has no parking garages on it.  So 
21      there's no need for liners.  It is programmed 
22      from the 160 feet of height down to the 
23      sidewalk.  And the portion of the project that 
24      faces west -- I mean, Mr. Berkowitz's analogy 
25      of an oasis is an interesting one.  The portion 
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1      of the project that faces west has the foil of 
2      the Metrorail tracks and the cars, so it's 
3      really primarily the remaining US-1 frontage 
4      that's left.  
5          You have the rail station to the west and 
6      you have the one building -- 
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  There's no rail 
8      station.  
9          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I mean, not rail station.  
10      The rails to the west -- 
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Which are relatively -- 
12      I mean, you've got a couple of pillars and you 
13      say, thirty feet, whatever it is -- 
14          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thirty-five.  
15          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  -- you have a track and 
16      every now and then a car going.  
17          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yeah.  But to put a 
18      residential liner facing the cars and the 
19      tracks is really difficult.  Who would want to 
20      live there?  
21          The point of the project that faces the 
22      south, which is -- you know, remember, the 
23      three buildings -- I could use the Site Plan -- 
24      I don't know where it is -- but we have the 
25      three buildings.  
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1          The one building that faces south has no 
2      parking whatsoever.  So it's 100 percent 
3      programmed down to the sidewalk.  And then the 
4      other two buildings that are left, the long 
5      side that faces west has the rail tracks on it.  
6      You would not want a liner there.  The only 
7      side that's left, significant side, because, 
8      remember, the buildings are 150 feet deep, is 
9      the US-1 frontage, and it has retail up to the 
10      height of 24 feet.  
11          MR. TRIAS:  Mr. Chairman, if I could just 
12      direct you to the drawings -- yes, exactly.  
13      Those drawings. 
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  I have a question.  
15          MR. TRIAS:  The parking is this area that 
16      has the larger arches, okay, and as you can 
17      see, they're detailed very carefully to break 
18      down the scale and also screen the parking.  So 
19      that's what the architect is proposing.  And 
20      that is an improvement from the one that is 
21      included in the package that was delivered to 
22      you.  
23          Now, the problem with this set of drawings 
24      is that it does not include the design for the 
25      hotel building, okay.  That is yet to be worked 
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1      on.  But I believe that the description of the 
2      architect as he has given you is the intent.  
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  This parking area that you 
4      just described, how high is it from the 
5      sidewalk?  Does anybody know?  
6          MR. TRIAS:  Do you have dimensions?  
7          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The base of the large 
8      arcade is 35 feet from the sidewalk.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  I'm talking about on top of 
10      the -- this is the parking garage area?  
11          MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.  No.  The parking 
12      garage -- well, can I go up and point?  
13          MS. MENENDEZ:  Of course.  
14          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  Or if you have a plan.  
16          What I'm trying to get at is, I would like 
17      to just identify -- 
18          MR. COLLER:  The problem with doing that -- 
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  We'll show it to the 
20      camera.  Right.  
21          Do me a favor, Mr. Hernandez.  Do me a 
22      favor, could we just take that to the podium so 
23      the camera can get it and then we'll get it 
24      back?
25          MS. MENENDEZ:  I have a question.  Is 
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1      that -- 
2          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Where do I hold it up?  
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right there.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Hold it up in front of 
5      you.  I think the camera should be able to get 
6      it. 
7          MS. MENENDEZ:  I think.  No?  Give it to 
8      Ramon.  They've got Ramon.
9           CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  There we go.  Hold on.  
10      Here we go.  Mr. Hernandez, hold it up.
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  They have the camera on 
12      Ramon.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Ramon, he had a 
14      conversation with a Board Member.  Let's just 
15      put it on the record just to make sure, please.  
16          MR. TRIAS:  Right.  We do have a detailed 
17      image on the PowerPoint that I had, so we can 
18      show that on the screen.
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right, but it's not this 
20      one.  Does it matter?  Is it the same?  
21          MR. TRIAS:  It's a detail of that, and it's 
22      actually a closeup.  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  Can we show it, then, 
24      because I have a question regarding that, and 
25      that's my plan?  
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1          MR. TRIAS:  Can I have like my PowerPoint, 
2      like towards the end, one of the last slides?  
3      Yes, that one.  
4          Okay.  
5          Jorge, can you use that to explain?  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  Is that parking also on the 
7      south or the north side of the building, does 
8      it run from south to north?  
9          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  When you say, north 
10      to south -- 
11          MR. COLLER:  Why don't you grab the mike?  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  It runs -- the parking runs 
13      all across the US-1 frontage, which would be 
14      south to north, although there's no true 
15      cardinalpoints here.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  How about east to 
17      west?  
18          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  On the east to 
19      west -- do we have a site -- somebody look -- I 
20      think it will be shorter to find the site plan.  
21      That's the one.  Okay.  Perfect.  
22          Now, if I hold this up, will the camera 
23      pick it up?  
24          Okay.  So this building has no parking in 
25      it.  In fact, there's no parking all of the way 
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1      to the northern limit of the square.  So 
2      there's no need for a liner here, because it's 
3      100 percent habitable program from its 
4      height -- from the top of its height to the 
5      sidewalk.  
6          Then there is parking in the apartment 
7      building, which is -- let's call it Building 2, 
8      which is the middle building, and Building 1, 
9      which is the northern most building, the one 
10      closest to Downtown, there is parking here, but 
11      the first floor of that parking occurs 24 feet 
12      above the sidewalk, which is the height of the 
13      commercial.  
14          There's a two-story commercial height, 24 
15      feet, and that parking goes for another 55 
16      feet, and that's what's screened by the 
17      feature -- we lost it -- if we can go back to 
18      the PowerPoint presentation -- yes -- and I 
19      don't know if this is a pointer -- is it a 
20      pointer -- yes -- for some reason, it doesn't 
21      go on screen.  The laser doesn't go on the 
22      screen.  
23          But it's essentially the arcade that you 
24      see, that is the parking structure.  
25          MS. MENENDEZ:  The reason I'm asking is 
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1      because, one of the arguments that were given 
2      to us earlier for the height was because of the 
3      residential, but, in fact, you have parking.  
4      So the parking is what's going to be right 
5      adjacent to the Metrorail.  
6          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  It's not residential.  
8      I mean, in other words, I'm having a hard time 
9      understanding the argument, if, in fact, 
10      there's a real big height difference still from 
11      where the parking is to where the Metrorail is.  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Let me try to explain it 
13      one more time, maybe I can get it right.  
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  And I was trying to get some 
15      feed, but I don't think we have anything.  
16          MR. HERNANDEZ:  But it will be useful to 
17      have this drawing again.  
18          Okay.  As a general rule, I think it's 
19      good -- I mean, if we did not have to park any 
20      cars in structures, which is not able to be 
21      done, right, we would have all buildings 
22      operate so they're 100 percent habitable from 
23      the top floor, right, and that happens in New 
24      York, for example, it happens in Chicago, but 
25      for newer cities, which are still car 
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1      dependent, we have to lodge the parkings in the 
2      body of the building. 
3          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  
4          MR. HERNANDEZ:  As part of the PAD, in an 
5      inspired way of reinterpreting the use of the 
6      ground plane and the volumetrics, we have 
7      compressed the parking in two-thirds of the 
8      site's footprint, under Building 1 and Building 
9      2.  That's a compression of the parking.  
10          I think you heard earlier testimony about 
11      the fact that if the parking were spread 
12      across, it would be lower, but we've condensed 
13      the parking, right.  What have we accomplished 
14      by doing that?  One, we have accomplished that 
15      what I call the nose, which is the most visible 
16      portion of the site -- this point, as you know, 
17      is the most visible portion of the site.  
18      That's the southern point -- the nose has no 
19      structured parking, right.  Building 3, which 
20      is the hotel, has no structured parking, which 
21      guards all of that area to the south.  
22          And then the structured parking, of course, 
23      because we are lodging it in two of the three 
24      mini blocks, is going to require greater 
25      height, but that height occurs at exactly the 
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1      height where the cars of the rail are passing 
2      through.  So they are above the retail and 
3      below the first habitable unit.  
4          It's exactly where you want them.  You want 
5      that kind of -- you know, let's call it dead 
6      function, of the car parked against or adjacent 
7      to the least desirable adjacency, which is the 
8      rail.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  But I heard earlier that the 
10      rail was at 34 feet and that the stores were at 
11      34 feet.  
12          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'm sorry, say it again.  
13          MS. MENENDEZ:  I had heard earlier that the 
14      storefronts were at 34 and that the rails were 
15      at 34 feet, and that the reason for the height 
16      was because you were trying to avoid having the 
17      apartments in front of the rail, but yet 
18      there's parking above the storefronts or the 
19      stores.  
20          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Right.  The stores are not 
21      at 34 feet.  The stores are from the ground to 
22      24 feet.  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  And then how high is the 
24      parking?  
25          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The parking starts at that 
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1      height, which is -- the beginning of the rail 
2      tracks are at 25 feet, okay.  
3          So the car, which is about a nine, ten-foot 
4      car, is passing between 25 feet in height and 
5      35 feet in height.  That is the first level of 
6      the parking.  
7          And then there are four additional levels, 
8      raising the first apartment four parking levels 
9      above the car passing by.  
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  Okay.  You know, from the 
11      height perspective and the argument that you're 
12      trying to keep -- I just think, you know, it's 
13      a little bit higher than it needs to be based 
14      on that argument.  
15          MR. HERNANDEZ:  I mean, if I had a unit 
16      there, I'd want to take the top unit, because 
17      I'd want my unit as far away as possible from 
18      the car, from the rail car.  
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  Right.  
20          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Right?  So what is the 
21      minimum of that threshold, we're saying it's 
22      four parking levels above the ceiling of the 
23      passing rail car.  So 40 feet above the ceiling 
24      of the rail car, of the passing tram, because 
25      it -- 
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1          MS. MENENDEZ:  Which would be 65 feet, 
2      because you're saying that the rail car is at 
3      25 feet -- 
4          MR. HERNANDEZ:  25 feet.  It's 55 feet.  
5      Here are the numbers:  Sidewalk is zero, top of 
6      retail is 24, okay.  And then there are five 
7      eleven-foot parking levels.  
8          Okay.  So the first apartment floor is 40 
9      feet above the ceiling of the car, the ceiling 
10      of the car.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  So you're just not clearing 
12      the rail, you want to push it up as much as you 
13      can.  
14          MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.  Well, we have to 
15      distribute a thousand cars.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  No, I know.  There's a lot 
17      of cars, because, you know, there's a lot of 
18      apartments, and there's retail and there's a 
19      whole -- I mean, the more you have, the more 
20      you have to provide.  
21          MR. HERNANDEZ:  We'd love to push it up as 
22      far as possible, because I don't think anybody 
23      wants to live close to the rail.  
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  I understand.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Where does the hotel 
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1      stop?  
2          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The hotel is the entirety 
3      of Building 1 -- or it's in Building 1.  We're 
4      going to need the -- well, I can tell you, it 
5      is the first two floors -- no, the first floor 
6      over the retail, so the retail is zero to 24, 
7      okay.  Then the first floor over the retail is 
8      the lobby of the hotel, because it's a sky 
9      lobby, and it's the restaurant and amenity 
10      decks.  That's another 24.  
11          That's the area that is right at the rail.  
12      And on the west side -- if you're thinking of 
13      the cross section, on the west side, all of the 
14      program against the rail is the back of house, 
15      laundry, restaurant, kitchens, all of that 
16      stuff, staff.  So, again, there are no units on 
17      the west side of that building that are level 
18      with the cars.  
19          MR. BELLIN:  Ramon, I'd like to ask you a 
20      question.  
21          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  
22          MR. BELLIN:  What is the policy of the 
23      City?  Do we want to have a shield for the 
24      parking or are we just going to provide 
25      screens?  Do we want a liner or do we just want 
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1      screens?  
2          And I think what we determine for this 
3      project, everybody else who does these kinds of 
4      projects should have the same ability.  I 
5      personally think that a liner is a much better 
6      way, regardless of what that liner comprises, 
7      than a screen.  But if you all decide that a 
8      screen is sufficient to shield the parking, 
9      then make a policy.  
10          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, and that's a very good 
11      point, and clearly the City Commission makes 
12      policy.  Staff makes recommendation and so do 
13      you.  
14          What we have said is that in the Downtown, 
15      and, particularly, in the Giralda Overlay, it 
16      would be very beneficial for the pedestrian 
17      live of the area, and also on Ponce de Leon.  
18          Maybe you're recalling the last discussion 
19      we had on that, to have liners, and the reason 
20      is that those are streets that both sides of 
21      the street have buildings that are comparable, 
22      and they work very well together, and so on.  
23          On US-1, I would recommend that the liner 
24      is not going to have the same effect.  I would 
25      say that because US-1 is basically a one sided 
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1      street, in terms of the development.  
2          MR. BELLIN:  What about the buildings 
3      across Ponce?  
4          MR. TRIAS:  We had a similar condition 
5      there, because of the Underline and -- 
6          MR. BELLIN:  But the parking garage goes 
7      way above the Metrorail.  You're looking at -- 
8          MR. TRIAS:  Way above, and just to answer 
9      your question, there's one diagram that shows 
10      the Metrorail in section -- 
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  What page is that?  
12          MR. TRIAS:  It's Page Z1.03.  
13          MS. MENENDEZ:  Thank you. 
14          MR. TRIAS:  And if you're able to find it, 
15      good luck.  If you're not, I have it here.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  I found it.  
17          MR. TRIAS:  So, factually, the discussion 
18      is correct.  The parking garage is much higher 
19      than the Metrorail existing conditions.  It is.  
20      And the Applicant is proposing that this is a 
21      superior design, from the point of view of the 
22      quality of life that happens in the upper 
23      units.  That is what they are proposing.  
24          And it's certainly within the range of 
25      discussion, as I said before.  They're not 
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1      proposing the tallest buildings in the City of 
2      Coral Gables at all.  So it's something that is 
3      within the range of Coral Gables building 
4      types.  
5          I think, if it's a good thing in the 
6      Giralda Overlay, why isn't it a good thing 
7      here?  
8          MR. TRIAS:  The liner, you mean?  
9          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
10          MR. TRIAS:  As I said before, in Giralda, 
11      we have a 60 feet right-of-way, we have 
12      symmetrical buildings, hopefully, more or less 
13      the same type of development, and there's a lot 
14      of activity in the actual right-of-way.  The 
15      cars are actually taking off many times.  That 
16      is not likely to happen in US-1.  
17          US-1 is certainly a -- 
18          MR. BELLIN:  No, but my concern is not 
19      US-1.  I agree with you.  My concern is the 
20      buildings that are north across Ponce.  You've 
21      got all of those residential units, people 
22      sitting on their balconies and looking into 
23      parking garages.  
24          MR. TRIAS:  Right, but over there, there's 
25      the right-of-way of Ponce de Leon, plus the 
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1      Underline, which has a lot landscape.  There's 
2      a variety of things that are happening.  So I 
3      don't think it's that critical, from purely an 
4      urban design point of view.  
5          Now, if you choose to make it a policy, the 
6      consequence of that is that then the parking 
7      gets taller, because clearly you're taking 
8      parking -- 
9          MR. BELLIN:  That's right.  
10          MR. TRIAS:  So that's the consequence of 
11      that.  So the building gets, perhaps, bulkier 
12      also.  So I don't think the architectural 
13      outcome is going to be better, from an artistic 
14      point of view.  
15          MR. BELLIN:  That's probably true, but all 
16      I'm saying is, it ought to be consistent with 
17      every project.  If screens are sufficient to 
18      shield parking, then, okay.  
19          MR. TRIAS:  I believe so, and my 
20      recommendation was to require liners in the 
21      Downtown, and this is not included in that 
22      recommendation, this area.  
23          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  On that point, if I may, 
24      on the issue of when liners are required and 
25      when they aren't, I'm looking at the Code right 
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1      now, and in the Mixed-Use District, there's two 
2      different sections requiring -- dealing with 
3      parking garages.  One of them provides that 
4      parking garages shall include exterior 
5      architectural treatments compatible with 
6      buildings or structures which occupy the same 
7      development and/or street.  
8          And, from my recollection, pretty much 
9      every other pedestal parking garage property 
10      that we have in the Mixed-Use District does 
11      retain that in the ground floor, but then has 
12      some amount of parking garage above the ground 
13      floor that is exposed.  
14          And I'm being reminded here, also, that the 
15      current Gables Station project, which was 
16      approved a few years back, the one that Mr. 
17      Berkowitz was referring to, apparently has 100 
18      feet, actually, of parking garage that is not 
19      lined.  
20          The other requirement in the Code reads, 
21      ground floor parking that is located and 
22      fronting on a primary street is prohibited.  
23      Ground floor parking is permitted on secondary 
24      streets, shall be fully enclosed within the 
25      structure and shall be surrounded by retail 
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1      uses.  Ground floor parking is permitted on 
2      alley frontages.  
3          Again, that refers to ground floor parking, 
4      and not the parking garage area that we have 
5      here.  
6          MR. BELLIN:  The only point I'm making is, 
7      if it's good here, it should be good 
8      everywhere.  I mean, I think it's fair.
9          MR. GARCIA-SERRA:  Right.  And I believe 
10      there are many parking garages where above the 
11      ground floor you have garage and it's screened 
12      somehow to avoid it.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think, personally, as 
14      far as at least the Site Plan is concerned and 
15      maybe some of the Text Amendments -- well, 
16      maybe not the Text Amendments, but at least as 
17      far as the Site Plan approval, I've heard all 
18      night that things are influx, things haven't 
19      been resolved, things need further detail.  
20          We were given updated drawings as we sat 
21      down tonight, which, I mean, I've scanned as 
22      we've been talking through, but haven't been 
23      able to review them.  And so between the 
24      serious concern about the height, I think that 
25      ought to at least be comparable with what is 
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1      across the way, so that would be Gables Ponce 1 
2      and 2.  
3          I think, that whole area, those are the 
4      tallest buildings at this point that have been 
5      approved, so it would be appropriate to 
6      maintain that compatibility.  But even with 
7      that said, there seems to be plenty of other 
8      open items on the Site Plan and Staff's 
9      recommendation -- even with the conditions as 
10      to what should happen, at which point in time, 
11      whether it's prior to building permit or prior 
12      to TCO or CO or what have you, and so I'm -- 
13      personally, I think this should go back, 
14      further review, tighten up the plans, and then 
15      I would like to see it come back before us in a 
16      more defined and a more completed state.  
17          MR. PEREZ:  Regarding your concern over the 
18      maintenance bond, et cetera, a lot of that is 
19      going to be addressed at the restrictive 
20      covenant phase.  
21          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  It will be, but usually 
22      when projects come before us, as you know, 
23      especially larger projects, I mean, we know 
24      there's some stuff that's not resolved, and 
25      it's going to end up finalizing later on down 
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1      the road, but it seems like almost every point 
2      tonight, as far as Site Plan development is 
3      concerned, I've heard, "Needs to be reviewed 
4      more.  Needs to be discussed more.  Not 
5      resolved yet.  Open for discussion."  And 
6      there's too many of those tonight, to make me 
7      comfortable, at least, for the Site Plan 
8      component.  
9          MS. MENENDEZ:  Even if you were to move 
10      forward with Staff's recommendation?  
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yeah.  Yeah.  But I'm 
12      one of four.  
13          MR. PEREZ:  What?  
14          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I'm only one of four 
15      tonight.  And we have -- where is my agenda, 
16      again?  We've got five separate items to 
17      approve.  
18          MR. PEREZ:  I mean, I personally don't have 
19      an issue with the height.  I mean, I think if 
20      you're going to get aggressive with height in 
21      the City, I think that's where height should 
22      go.  I mean, hearing now that Mediterranean 
23      Village was granted -- and I forgot -- but they 
24      got 208 -- 
25          MR. WU:  Sir, you need to speak into the mike. 
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1          MR. PEREZ:  That Mediterranean Village got 
2      208 feet in height, and I forgot that they were 
3      granted that much height, in an area that's a 
4      lot more residential than this, I personally 
5      don't have an issue with the height.  
6          I do agree with you, Jeffrey, that perhaps, 
7      as it relates to the Site Plan, there's some 
8      buttoning up for the Applicant to take care of, 
9      but I just want to go on the record and state 
10      that my concern with the height is okay.  
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Sure, thanks.  
12          MR. BELLIN:  What did we suggest for Paseo 
13      with respect to the height?  I think it was 
14      around 120.  
15          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think it was around 
16      120.  
17          MR. BELLIN:  Yeah, and we -- 
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  But that was pretty 
19      buttoned up when it got to us.  
20          MR. BELLIN:  Yeah, but that was one of the 
21      requirements that we had, that the building be 
22      lowered to 120 feet, roughly.  
23          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right. 
24          MR WU:  And Paseo is immediately close to a 
25      residential neighborhood.  
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1          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Correct. 
2          MR. WU:  So there's a distinct contextual 
3      issue there, and not the same as here.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  But here you've got 
5      buildings basically next door that are 100, 115 
6      feet high.  
7          MR. PEREZ:  But, I mean, I would agree with 
8      you if this was located to the north of Gables 
9      Residential, but, once again, considering that 
10      you're abutting US-1, again, I personally don't 
11      have an issue transitioning from a higher 
12      pedestal, you know, and working its way down 
13      towards the north.  
14          I would agree with you if it was located, 
15      once again, on the north side of Gables 
16      Residential, but, again, due to the proximity 
17      of US-1, I actually appreciate the height.  
18          MS. MENENDEZ:  But, you know, US-1 gets 
19      clogged every morning.  And my concern with all 
20      of these developments along US-1 is just that, 
21      that we continue to really put more and more on 
22      US-1 and the infrastructure is not there, the 
23      roadway is not there.  And so the more you 
24      build, the more you put on US-1, in this 
25      location, because every single project is 
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1      different, you know.  
2          MR. PEREZ:  Yeah.  No, I mean, I hear you, 
3      and I tend to agree with you, but I think the 
4      traffic engineers hopefully are looking at this 
5      carefully and we need to let them do their job.  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  The project has great 
7      components.  I mean, my concern is the height, 
8      because the more height, you know, the more 
9      intensity there is, the more traffic there is, 
10      in a location that I really don't think can 
11      really put up with a lot more.  
12          MR. PEREZ:  Yeah.  
13          MS. MENENDEZ:  I mean, that's -- I mean, I 
14      know where Jeff is going.  This is like not 
15      there yet, but we have a Staff recommendation 
16      that I feel comfortable with, from that 
17      perspective.  
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Ramon.  
19          MR. TRIAS:  No, if you want to go over the 
20      recommendations, conceptually, we agree, it's 
21      not there.  We're giving you the 
22      recommendations to be able to move forward, if 
23      you choose to, okay.  
24          So we've listed all of the things that are 
25      missing.  We've given some timelines, in terms 
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1      of when they should be provided.  The Applicant 
2      has a lot of work to do before they get to 
3      Commission, and so on.  And so that was the 
4      idea behind the recommendations.  
5          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right.  And even with 
6      the recommendation and you say, here's the open 
7      items and what needs to be reviewed, I mean, 
8      our charge is to, as far as I see it, review 
9      these applications in as close to final form as 
10      possible and we're not even close to being 
11      there on this one.  
12          MR. TRIAS:  Absolutely.  Exactly.  And 
13      that's your decision.  You have the tools to 
14      make whatever decision you want at this point.  
15          MR. BELLIN:  Ramon, if we move this 
16      forward, it goes to Commission.  The Commission 
17      then has the right to review it and send it 
18      back to us.  
19          MR. WU:  Yes, they can.  
20          MR. BELLIN:  All right. 
21          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah. 
22          MR. BELLIN:  And I think that's the way we 
23      ought to approach this, to hear what the 
24      Commission feels is appropriate.  If we move it 
25      forward with Staff's recommendations, let the 
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1      Commission, you know, have their chance to put 
2      input -- 
3          MR. TRIAS:  I think the role of the 
4      Planning and Zoning Board is to advice the 
5      Commission, to give a recommendation about what 
6      you believe is the right way to develop this 
7      property.  If you feel that you're comfortable 
8      enough with the information you have to do 
9      that, you should do that.  If you don't, then 
10      you certainly could vote not to do it.  
11          But I think we're all giving 
12      recommendations to the body that is going to 
13      make the policy decisions.  
14          MR. BELLIN:  I would like to see this move 
15      forward to the Commission, because I think 
16      they're going to kick it back to us anyway.  
17          MR. WU:  Mr. Chair, can we clarify one 
18      thing about the employee parking?  Whether the 
19      Applicant will agree to a condition to have 
20      employee parking in the garage as stated into 
21      the record, the adjacent employee parking?  
22          MR. BASS:  We agree.  
23          MR. WU:  Just make sure, if you make a 
24      motion, to include that as part of the motion.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Ramon -- 



2c80c266-cc6a-429e-b187-f25c41768f84

36 (Pages 141 to 144)

Page 141
1          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  -- one of your 
3      recommendations is what you call, gateway 
4      landmarks.  "The project shall provide gateway 
5      landmarks on-site at US-1 and Grand Avenue and 
6      at US-1 and Ponce."  
7          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  What page are you looking 
8      at, exactly?  
9          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Page 38.  
10          MR. TRIAS:  Okay. 
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Item AA.  What are we 
12      talking about with gateway landmarks?  
13          MR. TRIAS:  Some of the design of the area 
14      around Grand Avenue already does that with the 
15      art and the plaza, and we also felt that a 
16      similar high level design could be done at 
17      Ponce de Leon, at the other end of the project.  
18      Those are minor site planning recommendations.  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So is this ellipse or 
20      whatever we're going to call it at the south 
21      end, is that what's planned or is that a just 
22      placeholder?  
23          MR. TRIAS:  In my perspective, it's a 
24      placeholder, yes, and it really it, because it 
25      has to be reviewed by the different Boards, and 
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1      any kind of artistic -- any kind of art that is 
2      located there.  So it is a placeholder.  
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  Ramon, I'm on 
4      Page 40 of your Rec.  7-A, traffic calming -- 
5          MR. TRIAS:  Yes. 
6          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  -- says the Applicant 
7      or at the Applicant's expense, traffic calming 
8      studies within a year after the TCO is issued.  
9          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
10          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  It's only bounded on 
11      the west by Le Jeune Road.  
12          MR. TRIAS:  Okay.  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I would suggest that 
14      needs to go to at least Riviera.  Traffic 
15      already backs up, sometimes halfway or all of 
16      the way to Riviera in the mornings.  
17          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  That certainly is a good 
18      idea.  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think that whole area 
20      -- yeah, at least there.  Bird is probably 
21      okay.  You may even want to go further than 
22      Ponce on the east.  
23          MR. TRIAS:  Okay.  
24          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Has there been any 
25      discussion about the Underline improvements 
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1      going to Granada versus stopping at Le Jeune?  
2      That's a very difficult intersection right 
3      there at Le Jeune.  
4          MR. TRIAS:  Yes.  
5          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right where the gas 
6      station is, also.  And I think if you stop the 
7      Underline improvements there, you've created a 
8      path to nowhere.  
9          MR. TRIAS:  Are you thinking in terms of 
10      the intersections of the streets being the 
11      priority of improvements?  
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Well, I think that if 
13      this is an opportunity to create the continuity 
14      from the Ponce roundabout and get it down past 
15      Le Jeune and over the canal -- 
16          MR. TRIAS:  Okay.  
17          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  -- that's a very good 
18      opportunity to create the connectivity for the 
19      future, because getting across Le Jeune right 
20      there -- coming to a dead end right there, I 
21      think, does nothing.  
22          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  Absolutely.  One of the 
23      main issues is to enhance the crosswalks and 
24      the pedestrian ability to cross US-1, Le Jeune, 
25      all of that.  So Granada is perfectly fine, in 
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1      terms of an area for study.  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  Any further 
3      discussion or does somebody want to make 
4      a motion?  We have five items.  We need to take 
5      them separately. 
6          MR. BELLIN:  I'll make a motion to approve 
7      with Staff recommendations, starting with 
8      Number 5. 
9          MR. COLLER:  Well, I think we should go -- 
10      we need to go one by one through the items.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  Can I make a friendly 
12      request?  If you could also add to Staff 
13      recommendation eliminating the access on Ponce 
14      that we talked about, if you feel comfortable 
15      with that.  
16          MR. BELLIN:  Sure.  
17          MS. MENENDEZ:  And -- that's it.  
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Which access on Ponce?  
19          MS. MENENDEZ:  The one that cuts through 
20      the linear park.  
21          MR. TRIAS:  The automobile access.  
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  But now we're going to 
23      have everything on Grand, which clearly cannot 
24      handle it, and then Ponce by the circle.  
25          MS. MENENDEZ:  But we heard from the 
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1      traffic engineer that they didn't need it.  
2      That's why I asked them.  
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  
4          MS. MENENDEZ:  Just I'm concerned with more 
5      traffic on that Ponce, which is not really, you 
6      know, I just -- and then the whole -- like it 
7      was explained, you know, the pedestrians, the 
8      cyclist and then cars waiting, you know, and 
9      people might use that as a primary access 
10      point, and that would be a concern for me with 
11      a 900-plus car garage.  
12          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I agree with that, but, 
13      to me, closing it off creates -- so if you're 
14      coming up Ponce, you could turn in there and 
15      not impact the latter half of northerly Ponce 
16      or the roundabout trying to then get in.  
17          MS. MENENDEZ:  Can't you go down, turn into 
18      Grand, and then turn into the development?  
19          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I don't think the plans 
20      are laid out that you can do that.  Hold on.  
21      Maybe Mr. Hernandez -- 
22          MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  I thought that the traffic 
24      engineer had explained that, that there was an 
25      ability to go in.  
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1          MR. HERNANDEZ:  The best way I could answer 
2      it tonight is by saying, if that's the 
3      intention in the motion, we're willing to study 
4      it and if all of the traffic engineering 
5      science bears out that it has no negative 
6      impact to eliminate it, then it helps the 
7      linear park and it helps the connectivity of 
8      the Underline.  On the other hand, if we need 
9      it for some traffic purpose, then we would come 
10      back or through Staff say, "We need it and 
11      here's the traffic study."  
12          MS. MENENDEZ:  My only concern would be 
13      that that becomes the primary access, because 
14      it's clogged on South Dixie, people are trying 
15      to get into the development, and, boom, that 
16      becomes like the main way of getting into the 
17      development, and that would be concerning, 
18      because it would be constantly interfering with 
19      the activities in the park.  
20          But, you know, that was a suggestion.  You 
21      don't have to accept it, if you don't want to.  
22          MR. TRIAS:  And then Staff is uncomfortable 
23      with this location, also, in the sense that 
24      this is here only because it was approved for a 
25      prior project.  
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1          MS. MENENDEZ:  I know, that's -- if it's 
2      not needed, then we shouldn't encourage it.  
3      But if it's needed, I understand your concern.  
4          MR. PEREZ:  Just to be clear, you're having 
5      the issue with that one, right?  
6          MS. MENENDEZ:  That one, yes.  
7          MR. PEREZ:  Okay.  All right.  
8          MR. TRIAS:  What I would advice is that 
9      perhaps you phrase it as to study the necessity 
10      of that connection.  
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  Study the possibility of 
12      eliminating the access on Ponce parallel to 
13      South Dixie Highway.  I mean, the Ponce that's 
14      parallel.  Is that acceptable?  
15          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
16          MS. MENENDEZ:  Thank you, sir.  
17          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Can I ask?  Ramon, if 
18      you're coming eastbound on Grand, can you turn 
19      into the project at the hotel?  
20          MR. TRIAS:  From here, yes.  
21          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No, eastbound on Grand?  
22          MR. TRIAS:  This way?  
23          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yes.  
24          MS. MENENDEZ:  No, I don't think so. 
25          MR. TRIAS:  I think so, yes.  It is two 
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1      ways right now.  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No, that's the right 
3      turn only exit that your pen just dragged 
4      across, I believe. 
5          MR. TRIAS:  Well, but it could be designed, 
6      if you'd prefer to have both -- 
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I think, in reality, 
8      unless it's the middle of the day, it's never 
9      going to happen with the way traffic backs up 
10      both ways, the conflicts are going to be 
11      tremendous, but I think that needs to be 
12      researched greater.  
13          MR. TRIAS:  Yes, and what I would tell you 
14      is that the review of the traffic operations 
15      and the traffic study is still incomplete, so 
16      certainly your recommendations are going to be 
17      taken by the Public Works staff and by their 
18      consultants and we'll come back to the 
19      Commission with more precise ideas.  
20          MR. BELLIN:  So I've made a motion to 
21      approve with Staff recommendation -- 
22          MR. WU:  Mr. Chair, the first three 
23      motions, the first one is Comp Plan Map change.  
24      There are no conditions.  
25          The second one is the Zoning Code Map 
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1      change.  There are no conditions.  
2          The third one is a Zoning Code Text, there 
3      are no conditions.
4          If you can get that out of the way, then we 
5      can deal with the conditions for Number 4 and 
6      Number 5, please. 
7          MR. TRIAS:  The only issue, to follow Mr. 
8      Wu's very good advice, is that the Zoning Code 
9      Text Amendment is the one about the height.  
10      Okay.  So that one has a particular -- 
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  That's Number 3, right?  
12          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah.  That has a particular 
13      number, so whatever you want to recommend -- 
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  That's Number 3, right?  
15          MR. TRIAS:  Yes, that's Number 3.  
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Right.  So, Marshall, 
17      you are recommending approval of Item Number 5 
18      in our Agenda, which is the change to the Comp 
19      Plan Text and Map Amendments from Industrial 
20      Land Use to Mixed-Use?  
21          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
22          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Anybody want to second?  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  Oh, I'll second it.
24          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Motion and a second.  
25      Any further discussion on Agenda Item Number 5?  
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1          Jill, if you'll call the roll, please?
2          THE SECRETARY:  Marshall Bellin?
3          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.
4          THE SECRETARY:  Maria Menendez?
5          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.
6          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?  
7          MR. PEREZ:  Yes.
8          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Flanagan?
9          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yes.  
10          MS. MENENDEZ:  So you're going backwards?  
11      You're going backwards?  You're doing Number 5 
12      first?  
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  I'm going by the 
14      agenda.  
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  Oh, okay. 
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Agenda Item Number 5.  
17          MR. COLLER:  Okay.  That was the Comp Plan.  
18          MR. WU:  Yes, that was the Comp Plan.  
19          MR. TRIAS:  It's the Comp Plan to 
20      Mixed-Use, with regards to the change to 
21      Mixed-Use.  
22          MR. COLLER:  Right.  Now we're going to 
23      Number 6.  
24          MR. BELLIN:  I'll make a motion to approve 
25      Number 6, with -- well, there's no Staff 
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1      recommendations at this point.  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  That's the Amendment to 
3      the Zoning Map from -- change the Zoning from 
4      Industrial to Commercial and removing the South 
5      Industrial Mixed-Use District.  
6          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
7          MR. COLLER:  And you said that was in 
8      accordance with Staff recommendations, correct?  
9          MR. TRIAS:  Right.  
10          MR. PEREZ:  I'll second.  
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Motion and a second.  
12      Any further discussion?  
13          Jill, if you'll call the roll, please.
14          THE SECRETARY:  Maria Menendez?
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.
16          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?
17          MR. PEREZ:  Yes.
18          THE SECRETARY:  Marshall Bellin?
19          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.
20          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Flanagan?
21          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yes.  
22          Agenda Item Number 7.
23          MR. COLLER:  I just want to make sure we're 
24      clear, on 6, there were findings of fact as 
25      part of the Department's recommendations, which 
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1      by making it in accordance with the 
2      Department's recommendation, you've adopted 
3      those findings of fact.  
4          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Correct.  
5          MR. COLLER:  Okay.  So that's clear on that 
6      motion.  
7          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So Agenda Item Number 
8      7, which is what Staff is calling Request 3, 
9      the Zoning Code Text Change.  
10          MR. BELLIN:  This one deals with the height 
11      issue.  
12          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, and this is important, 
13      because the Mixed-Use doesn't have height or 
14      FAR attached to it, unlike every other Land 
15      Use.  So you have to adopt something.  
16          MR. BELLIN:  Okay.  So I'll make a motion 
17      to approve with Staff's recommendation.  
18          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Okay.  
19          MR. WU:  And that is of 120 foot.  
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  So Staff's 
21      recommendation is 120 feet and maintain the 
22      setback at Grand Avenue.  
23          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
24          MR. TRIAS:  And the 3.5 FAR.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  We have a motion.  
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1      Anybody want to second?  
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  I'll second it.  
3          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  A motion and a second.  
4      Any further discussion?  Hearing none, Jill, 
5      can you call the roll, please?  
6          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?  
7          MR. PEREZ:  Yes.
8          THE SECRETARY:  Marshall Bellin?
9          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.
10          THE SECRETARY:  Maria Menendez?
11          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.
12          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Flanagan?
13          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Yes.
14          All right.  Next item is Agenda Item Number 
15      8.  
16          MR. COLLER:  Excuse me for one minute, 
17      Mr. Chairman.  Just a housekeeping measure.  On 
18      5, apparently there is a Department 
19      recommendation with findings of fact.  Is that 
20      correct?  So that motion that was made was 
21      approval in accordance with the Department's 
22      recommendation.  
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yeah, that's how he made it. 
24          MR. TRIAS:  Including the findings of fact.  
25          MR. COLLER:  Including the findings of 
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1      fact.  
2          MS. MENENDEZ:  He made it like that.  
3          MR. COLLER:  He did make it like that?  
4          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes. 
5          MR. COLLER:  Okay.  Very good.  
6          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  Agenda Item Number 8, 
7      which is Staff's Request Number 4, it's the 
8      Planned Area Development approval.  
9          MR. BELLIN:  Again, I'll make a motion to 
10      approve with Staff's recommendations.  
11          MR. WU:  And just to clarify whether we're 
12      including the research to eliminate Ponce 
13      access?  Does that reside in this ordinance, 
14      Ramon?  
15          MR. TRIAS:  Yeah, and also the Mixed-Use, yes.  
16          MR. WU:  And to include the employee 
17      parking provision the Applicant suggested in 
18      the record.  
19          MR. BELLIN:  Is that really an issue that 
20      we should be concerned with?  I mean, it's 
21      their building and the neighbors are across the 
22      street --
23          MR. WU:  Yes, it is, because they might 
24      have to provide additional parking in the 
25      garage.  
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1          MR. TRIAS:  It's a significant issue as it 
2      relates to the design of the Underline.  Some 
3      of the parking that has been described here as 
4      public parking is actually in the Underline.  
5      So the idea is that some of that parking could 
6      be relocated into their project, and then have 
7      some kind of management process by which people 
8      can use it.  
9          The Applicant agreed to it, so I think it's 
10      a very good condition.  
11          MR. BELLIN:  Okay.  
12          MR. WU:  And your motion includes findings 
13      of fact by the Staff report.  
14          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
15          MS. MENENDEZ:  I'll second it.  
16          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  We have a motion and 
17      second.  
18          Further discussion?  
19          Jill, call the roll, please. 
20          THE SECRETARY:  Marshall Bellin?  
21          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.
22          THE SECRETARY:  Maria Menendez?
23          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.
24          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?
25          MR. PEREZ:  Yes.  
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1          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Flanagan?  
2          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No.  
3          Next item is Agenda Item Number 9.  This is 
4      the Site Plan review for the MXD, Staff's 
5      Request Number 5.  
6          MR. BELLIN:  I'll make a motion to approve 
7      with Staff recommendations.  
8          MR. WU:  Including findings of fact.  
9          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.  
10          MR. PEREZ:  I'll second.  
11          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  A motion and a second.  
12      Any discussion?  Hearing none, Jill.
13          THE SECRETARY:  Maria Menendez?  
14          MS. MENENDEZ:  Yes.
15          THE SECRETARY:  Alberto Perez?
16          MR. PEREZ:  Yes.  
17          THE SECRETARY:  Marshall Bellin?  
18          MR. BELLIN:  Yes.
19          THE SECRETARY:  Jeff Flanagan?
20          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  No.  
21          All right.  Thank you.  
22          MR. TRIAS:  Thank you very much.  
23          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  We're all done?  
24          MR. TRIAS:  That's it.  We're done.  
25          CHAIRMAN FLANAGAN:  All right.  Thank you 
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1      all.  
2          (Thereupon, the hearing was concluded at 
3      8:55 p.m.)
4
5      
6      
7      
8      
9      
10      
11      
12      
13      
14      
15      
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1                   C E R T I F I C A T E
2      
3 STATE   OF   FLORIDA:
4                   SS.
5 COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE:
6      
7      
8      
9          I, NIEVES SANCHEZ, Court Reporter, and a Notary  
10 Public for the State of Florida at Large, do hereby 
11 certify that I was authorized to and did 
12 stenographically report the foregoing proceedings and 
13 that the transcript is a true and complete record of my 
14 stenographic notes.
15      
16          DATED this 25th day of May, 2016.
17      
18      
19      
20      
21                                 SIGNATURE ON FILE
22                            _________________________

                                NIEVES SANCHEZ
23      
24      
25      






































































































